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PART I

Forward Looking Statements

Statements in this Form 10-K Annual Report may be “forward-looking statements.” Forward-looking statements include, but are not
limited to, statements that express our intentions, beliefs, expectations, strategies, predictions or any other statements relating to our
future activities or other future events or conditions. These statements are based on current expectations, estimates and projections
about our business based, in part, on assumptions made by our management. These statements are not guarantees of future
performance and involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes and results may,
and probably will, differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements due to numerous factors,
including those described above and those risks discussed from time to time in this Form 10-K Annual Report, including the risks
described under “Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and in
other documents which we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

In addition, such statements could be affected by risks and uncertainties related to our financial condition, factors that affect our
industry, market and customer acceptance, competition, government regulations and requirements and pricing, as well as general
industry and market conditions and growth rates, and general economic conditions. Any forward-looking statements speak only as of
the date on which they are made, and we do not undertake any obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events
or circumstances after the date of this Form 10-K Annual Report.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

GENERAL

Stem Cell Business
Our principal line of business, which we acquired from ACS Global, is the collection, processing and storage of adipose (fat) Derived
Adult Stem Cells (the “Stem Cells”), in order to permit individuals to preserve their Stem Cells for potential future use in cell therapy.
However, our business is currently in the formative stage and we will require additional financing to reach our business objectives.
Management currently believes that we will be able to collect, process and store Stem Cells for adults and include the first year of
storage fees for an initial fee of $2,500.00. During the initial stages of our marketing program with new providers and in new locations
we may from time to time offer discounts from the list price. Thereafter, it is intended that clients will be responsible for the payment of
an annual storage fee, initially priced at $200.00 per year. Management believes that Stem Cells are currently being used in the
emerging field of regenerative medicine globally and have the potential to become a multibillion dollar industry in the future.

Management further believes that Stem Cells have the potential to heal a substantial number of diseases and chronic conditions and
that we will be able to provide a streamlined and affordable method to process and cryopreserve Stem Cells for autologous (self) use
in humans for the emerging regenerative medicine market.

Current published medical research shows that applications for Stem Cells can be used to support tissue repair and cell therapies to
expedite healing of wounds, burns and physical trauma in joints, bone, muscle, tendons and ligaments. Effects of diseases that
management believes can be alleviated through the use of Stem Cells include cardiovascular disease, cancer, stroke, central
nervous disorders and diabetes. Management also believes that the near-term applications include the use of processed Stem Cells
as biocompatible fillers in cosmetic and reconstructive surgery. Although our Stem Cell business is in its development stage and to
date has generated no revenues, subject to, among other factors, obtaining the requisite financing, management anticipates that we
will be able to provide the following services:
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 • Collecting an individual’s adipose tissue through a participating doctor who will forward the tissue to our laboratory;
   
 • Processing the tissue in the laboratory to separate the component parts of an individual’s adipose tissue, which includes

the Stem Cells and other regenerative cells; and
   
 • Cryopreserving adipose tissue and Stem Cells for immediate use or long-term storage.

The Stem Cells processed from adipose tissue are prepared and cryopreserved in their raw form without manipulation, bio-generation
or the addition of biomarkers or other materials, which management believes may make such Stem Cells suitable for use in cellular
treatments (i.e., the biomedical use of Stem Cells to treat patients) currently offered by existing and planned treatment centers
worldwide. Management believes that affordably preserving cells derived from adipose tissue can provide a user with the opportunity
to take advantage of the emerging field of regenerative medicine, i.e., healing the body using one’s own stem cells.

In September of 2011 we completed the required testing, validation and verification of our core processing methodology and
laboratory equipment. The laboratory is located in the science incubator on the Campus of the Burlington Community College located
in Mount Laurel, NJ.  We lease approximately 1300 square feet.  This laboratory facility will allow us to quickly expand our processing
capabilities and expand our current product and services development.

On August 2, 2011, we were awarded US Patent No. US 7,989,205 B2, titled Cell Culture Media, Kits, and Methods of Use. This
Patent was assigned to us by our Chief Scientist, Dr. David Moscatello in 2010 and was originally filed on October 4, 2006. We have
continued to develop tools, and cellular processing methods that have the potential to result in new products and services being
offered for commercial sale and licensing at a future date. Management cannot predict if a market for these products will develop and
therefore cannot predict the potential impact these new products will have upon our revenue.

Movie Production Business
Following the completion of the acquisition of substantially all the assets of ACS Global, we continued to operate our movie production
business as a separate division during the third quarter to review its operations and projects. Following the review we decided in the
fourth quarter to discontinue its operations and the results for the fiscal year are listed under “Discontinued Operations” in
the financial statement herein.
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HISTORICAL DEVELOPMENT
We were incorporated in the State of Nevada on March 13, 2009 under the name R&A Productions, Inc. On April 20, 2011, we
acquired, through our wholly owned subsidiary American CryoStem Acquisition Corporation, substantially all of the assets from, and
assumed substantially all of the liabilities of, American CryoStem Corporation, a Nevada corporation (which subsequently changed its
name to ACS Global, Inc.) in exchange for our issuance of 21,000,000 shares of our common stock, par value $0.001 per share, to
ACS Global, Inc. (“ACS Global”) (the “Asset Purchase”). Our fiscal year ends September 30 of each calendar year.

Upon the Asset Purchase Closing: (i) ACS Global became our majority shareholder, (ii) John Arnone was appointed as our chief
executive officer and president and Anthony Dudzinski was appointed as our chief operating officer, treasurer and secretary, (iii)
Messrs. Dudzinski and Arnone were appointed to our board of directors, with Mr. Arnone being appointed as Chairman of the Board,
and (iv) Mr. Medina resigned as the chief executive officer, president, treasurer, secretary and the sole member of the board of
directors and was simultaneously appointed as our Vice President of Film Operations. Mr. Dudzinski is also a director and the
President and Treasurer of ACS Global and Mr. Arnone is a director and Secretary of ACS Global.

The 21,000,000 shares of Common Stock issued to ACS Global (the “Purchase Shares”) were issued pursuant to the exemption
from registration provided under Regulation D of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and Rule 506
promulgated thereunder.

Contemporaneously with the Asset Purchase Closing, we sold 1,860,000 shares of Common Stock to accredited investors in a
private placement at a purchase price of $0.50 per share for aggregate gross proceeds of $930,000.

Following the completion of the Asset Purchase with ACS Global, the Company issued an additional 712,000 shares of common
stock to accredited investors in a private placement and received net proceeds of $356,000.

During the year ended September 30, 2011, the Company issued 57,500 shares of common stock for services rendered at a cost of
$28,751.
 
As of September 30, 2011, the number of issued and outstanding shares of our Common Stock was 26,475,662, consisting of (i) the
21,000,000 shares held by ACS Global, constituting approximately 79.3% of the issued and outstanding shares of our Common
Stock, (ii) 2,845,862 shares held by our shareholders prior to the Asset Purchase Closing Date, constituting approximately 10.7% of
the issued and outstanding shares of our Common Stock, (iii) the 1,860,000 shares sold in the private offering completed in April
2011, constituting approximately 7% of the issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock, (iv) 712,300 shares sold in a private
offering following the closing of the Asset Purchase constituting approximately 3% of the issued and outstanding shares of our
Common Stock and, (v) 57,500 shares issued for consulting services from unaffiliated parties, representing less than 1% of the
issued and outstanding shares of our Common Stock.

On June 15, 2011, we changed our name from “R & A Productions, Inc.” to “American CryoStem Corporation.” Simultaneously, our
ticker symbol was changed from “RAPP” to “CRYO.” On June 15, 2011, ACS Global changed its name from “American CryoStem
Corporation” to “ACS Global, Inc.” ACS Global’s ticker symbol on the pink sheets remains “AMCY.”

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Overview

Our principal line of business, which we acquired from ACS Global, is the collection, processing and storage of adipose (fat) Derived
Adult Stem Cells (the “Stem Cells”), in order to permit individuals to preserve their Stem Cells for potential future use in cell therapy.
However, our business is currently in the formative stage and we will require additional financing to reach our business objectives.
Management currently believes that we will be able to collect, process and store Stem Cells for adults and include the first year of
storage fees for an initial fee of approximately $2,500.00. During the initial stages of our marketing program with new providers and in
new locations we may from time to time offer discounts from the list price. Thereafter, it is intended that clients will be responsible for
the payment of an annual storage fee, initially priced at $200.00 per year. Management believes that Stem Cells are currently being
used in the emerging field of regenerative medicine globally and have the potential to become a multibillion dollar industry in the
future.
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Management further believes that Stem Cells have the potential to heal a substantial number of diseases and chronic conditions and
that the Company will be able to provide a streamlined and affordable method to process and cryopreserve Stem Cells for autologous
(self) use in humans for the emerging regenerative medicine market.

We are also developing new products and services based upon and as a result of our development of our core tissue processing and
banking business. These new products and services are designed for both professionals and consumers.  We have continued the
refinement of our intellectual property development to expand the opportunity to commercialize products and services for the
developing adult stem cell industry.
 
Marketing and Distribution
 
We have deployed a two tier marketing strategy to enroll both doctors and consumers. We have a “Go-To-Market” strategy to drive
general awareness. We have initiated a direct marketing program focused upon plastic and cosmetic surgeons and have an initial
group of providers that have begun to offer our services to their patients. This marketing program has been implemented using a
traditional sales approach common to the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries. This basic industry sales approach and the
core of our marketing activities are being expanded using a combination of in-house sales personnel and outside independent
channels.

In addition, we have begun a comprehensive integrated marketing campaign through various media such as the internet, social
media, video, print, TV, radio and trade shows to initiate the education of medical professionals and their patients to promote
awareness of our company and our products. The essence of this educational strategy is to reach the end-users as quickly as
possible and to accelerate the adoption curve of our services. In addition, we plan to utilize outside marketing resources and trade
groups to increase the number of surgeons willing to offer our services to their patients.

The combination of a traditional sales approach supported by continuous internal and external marketing programs will be closely
coordinated with the expansion of our laboratory processing capabilities. The initial approach is a ‘Top Down and Bottom Up Push’
which is intended to disseminate scientific research and empirical based evidence that supports cellular medicine through the use of
Adult Stem Cells. Specifically to educate plastic and cosmetic surgeons and potential clients on the significant benefits of adult stem
cell collection and storage. ACS is employing an extensive print advertising and social media sales campaign. In addition, the
Company plans to utilize key leaders, and early adaptors in the medical community as a marketing resource to increase the number
of surgeons who join our network and collaborate with us.

A key objective of our marketing campaign is to position American CryoStem in the market as the premier, affordable adult stem cell
collection and cell banking company in North America. Our marketing strategy seeks to generate Company awareness and increase
the customer base through an Integrated Marketing Campaign consisting of the following:
 
 • Social Media: development of social communities through FaceBook, Twitter, Linked-In, etc. for topic(s)

discussion and word-of-mouth promotion.
 • Print media: for brand awareness generating an ‘informed customer’ through national newspapers, and

magazine
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 • Online media: to channel customers to the CryoStem website where they are educated on the benefits of
adult stem cell therapies and regenerative medicine. Traditional TV and Radio

 • Networking: with specific organizations to generate large long-term contracts (hospitals, surgery center
franchises, unions, etc.)

 • Trade shows: conference participation with major institutions will help with company exposure and future
relationships with other companies and doctors.

 • News publications: promoting the innovation of American CryoStem and stem cell/regenerative medicine
industry

 • Vertical alignment: with targeted associations and organizations specifically seeking alternative research
for cures that can be facilitated through the use of the ACS proprietary stem cell processing.

 
We plan to market our collection service to physicians through a tiered target roll-out as follows:

    Tier 1: Cosmetic, reconstruction and plastic surgeons, and general surgeons currently involved with offering liposuction.
 
We are identifying and developing additional marketing tiers that the Company will implement in 2012.
 
EMPLOYEES

Currently, we have eight employees and continue to use consultants on an as needed basis. As we grow, we will need to attract an
unknown number of additional qualified employees, however we could be unsuccessful in attracting and retaining the persons
needed.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

We began operations in March of 2009. We were reincorporated in Nevada on March 13 2009. Our principal executive offices are
located at 188 East Bergen Place, Suite 204 Red Bank NJ 07701, and our telephone number is (732) 747-1007. We also lease and
operate a tissue processing laboratory in Mount Laurel, New Jersey at the Burlington County College Science Incubator located on
the Burlington County College Campus. Our website address is www.americancryostem.com.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We file electronically with the SEC our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K,
amendments to such reports, as well as other documents. Copies of these reports are available, free of charge, on our website. The
public may read and copy any materials filed with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington,
DC, 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330. Copies of these reports can also be obtained from the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our common stock involves significant risks. You should carefully consider the following risks and all other
information set forth in this Annual Report before deciding to invest in our common stock. If any of the events or developments
described below occurs, our business, financial condition and results of operations may suffer. In that case, the value of our common
stock may decline and you could lose all or part of your investment.

We have a history of losses; there are doubts about our ability to continue as a going concern.
We are in the formative stage of operations. We have incurred negative cash flows since inception from our activities, and at this time
as well as for the foreseeable future will finance (until we can generate sufficient revenues, if ever, to cover expenses) our activities
and overhead expenses through the issue and sale of debt or equity securities. The recoverability of the costs incurred by us to date
is highly uncertain and is dependent upon achieving commercial production and sales of our services, of which no assurances can be
given. Our prospects must be considered in light of the risks, expenses and difficulties which are frequently encountered by
companies in their formative stage in an emerging industry.
 
We expect to incur increased operating expenses for the foreseeable future. The amount of net losses and the time required for us to
reach and sustain profitability are uncertain. The likelihood of our success must be considered in light of the problems, expenses,
difficulties, and delays frequently encountered in connection with a formative stage business, including, but not limited to, uncertainty
as to development and the time required for our planned services to become available in the marketplace. There can be no
assurance that we will ever generate revenues or achieve profitability at all or on any substantial basis. These matters raise
substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. If we cease or curtail our development activities, it is highly likely
that you would lose your entire investment in our Company.

We will require substantial additional capital to pursue our business plan.
We have limited revenues and no net income. We have financed our development activities since inception through the sale of
securities. Our capital requirements will depend on many factors, including, among other things, the cost of developing our business
and marketing activities, the efficacy and effectiveness of our proposed services, costs (whether or not foreseen), the length of time
required to collect accounts receivable we may in the future generate, competing technological and market developments and
acceptance. Changes in our proposed business or business plan could materially increase our capital requirements. We cannot
assure you that our proposed plans will not change or that changed circumstances will not result in the depletion of our capital
resources more rapidly than currently anticipated.

We will need to obtain substantial additional financing to, among other things, fund the future development of any services we
attempt to undertake and for general working capital purposes. Any additional equity financing, if available, may be dilutive to
stockholders and any such additional equity securities may have rights, preferences or privileges that are senior to those of the
holders of shares of our Common Stock. Debt financing, if available, will require payment of interest and may involve our granting
security interests on our assets and restrictive covenants that could impose limitations on our operating flexibility.
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Our ability to obtain needed financing may be impaired by such factors as the capital markets, our capital structure, the lack of an
active market for shares of our Common Stock, and our lack of profitability, all of which would impact the availability or cost of future
financings. We cannot assure prospective investors that we will be able to obtain requisite financing in a timely fashion or at all and, if
obtained, on acceptable terms. Our inability to obtain needed financing on acceptable terms would have a material adverse effect on
the implementation of our proposed business plan.

We are wholly dependent on Messrs. Arnone and Dudzinski.
We are wholly dependent on Messrs. Arnone and Dudzinski, our only two (2) executive officers and directors. Our future performance
will depend on the continued services of such persons and our ability to retain such persons and/or hire additional qualified persons.
The loss of Messrs. Arnone and/or Dudzinski would materially and adversely affect our proposed business. We have not yet entered
into employment agreements with Messrs. Arnone and Dudzinski, but we intend to do so in the near future. It is expected that such
employment agreements will, among other terms, permit each of Messrs. Arnone and Dudzinski to conduct other business activities
outside of their employment with us.

Mr. Arnone is presently involved with another entity that operates in an industry similar to ours but that management does not believe
to be in competition with us. We may in the future seek to initiate a business relationship with, and/or acquisition of, this other entity.
Management cannot assure you that any such business relationship or acquisition, if consummated, would be on terms favorable to
us.

We have not obtained any “key-man” life insurance policies nor do we presently plan to obtain or maintain any such policies on
Messrs. Arnone, Dudzinski or any other of our employees.

We may be unable to protect our intellectual property from infringement by third parties, and third parties may claim that we
are infringing on their intellectual property, either of which could materially and adversely affect us.

We intend to rely on patent protection, trade secrets, technical know-how and continuing technological innovation to protect our
intellectual property, and we expect to require any employees, consultants and advisors that we may hire or engage in the future to
execute confidentiality and assignment of inventions agreements in connection with their employment, consulting or advisory
relationships. There can be no assurance, however, that these agreements will not be breached or that we will have adequate
remedies for any such breach.

Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual property, third parties may infringe or misappropriate our intellectual property or may
develop intellectual property competitive with ours. Our competitors may independently develop similar technology or otherwise
duplicate our proposed processes or services. As a result, we may have to litigate to enforce and protect our intellectual property
rights to determine their scope, validity or enforceability. Intellectual property litigation is particularly expensive, time-consuming,
diverts the attention of management and technical personnel and could result in substantial cost and uncertainty regarding our future
viability. The loss of intellectual property protection or the inability to secure or enforce intellectual property protection would limit our
ability to produce and/or market our services in the future and would likely have an adverse affect on any revenues we may in the
future be able to generate by the sale or license of such intellectual property.

We may be subject to costly litigation in the event our future services or technology infringe upon another party’s proprietary rights.
Third parties may have, or may eventually be issued, patents that would be infringed by our technology. Any of these third parties
could make a claim of infringement against us with respect to our technology. We may also be subject to claims by third parties for
breach of copyright, trademark or license usage rights. Any such claims and any resulting litigation could subject us to significant
liability for damages. An adverse determination in any litigation of this type could require us to design around a third party’s patent,
license alternative technology from another party or otherwise result in limitations in our ability to use the intellectual property subject
to such claims.
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Cell therapy is a developing field and a significant market for our services has yet to emerge.
Cell therapy and regenerative medicine is a developing field, with few cell therapy products or services approved for clinical and/or
commercial use. We are wholly dependent on the acceptance of cell therapy (and specifically Stem Cells) to develop into a large and
profitable industry. We hope to develop services related to the collection, processing and storage of Stem Cells. We believe the
market for cell and tissue-based therapies is in its infancy, substantially research oriented and financially speculative and has yet to
achieve substantial commercial success. Stem Cell products and services may in general be susceptible to various risks, including
undesirable and unintended side effects, unintended immune system responses, inadequate therapeutic efficacy, lack of acceptance
by physicians, hospital and consumers, or other characteristics that may prevent or limit their approval or commercial use.
Management believes that the demand for Stem Cell processing and the number of people who may use cell or tissue-based
therapies is difficult, if not impossible, to forecast. Our success is dependent on the establishment of a market for our proposed
services and our ability to capture a share of this market.

Our proposed services may not attain commercial acceptance absent endorsement by physicians.
Our proposed services will compete against individual cellular samples derived from alternate sources, such as bone marrow,
umbilical cord blood and perhaps embryos. We believe that physicians and hospitals are historically slow to adopt new technologies
like ours, whatever the merits, when older technologies continue to be supported by established providers. Overcoming such inertia
often requires very significant marketing expenditures or definitive product performance and/or pricing superiority. Management
currently believes physicians’ and hospitals’ inertia and skepticism to be a significant barrier as we attempt to gain market penetration
with our proposed services. Failure to achieve market acceptance of our proposed services could have a material adverse effect on
our future prospects.

If we should in the future become required to obtain regulatory approval to market and sell our proposed services we will
not be able to generate any revenues until such approval is received.
The medical industry is subject to stringent regulation by a wide range of authorities. While we believe that, given our proposed
business, we are not presently required to obtain regulatory approval to market our services, we cannot predict whether regulatory
clearance will be required in the future and, if so, whether such clearance will at such time be obtained, whether for the Stem Cells
and/or any other services that we are developing or may attempt to develop. Should such regulatory approval in the future be
required, our services may be suspended or may not be able to be marketed and sold in the United States until we have completed
the regulatory clearance process as and if implemented by the FDA. Satisfaction of regulatory requirements typically takes many
years, is dependent upon the type, complexity and novelty of the product or service and would require the expenditure of substantial
resources.

If regulatory clearance of a service we propose to provide is granted, this clearance may be limited to those particular states and
conditions for which the service is demonstrated to be safe and effective, which would limit our ability to generate revenue. We cannot
ensure that any service developed by us will meet all of the applicable regulatory requirements needed to receive marketing
clearance. Failure to obtain regulatory approval will prevent commercialization of our services where such clearance is necessary.
There can be no assurance we will obtain regulatory approval of our proposed services that may require it.

We are authorized to issue 300,000,000 shares of Common Stock and 50,000,000 shares of “blank check” preferred stock,
the issuance of which could, among other things, reduce the proportionate ownership interests of current shareholders.
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We are authorized to issue 300,000,000 shares of Common Stock and 50,000,000 shares of “blank check” preferred stock. As of
September 30, 2011, there were 26,475,662 shares of Common Stock and no shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding. Our
board of directors (the “Board”) has the ability, without seeking shareholder approval, to issue additional shares of Common Stock
and/or to designate, establish the terms and conditions of, and issue shares of preferred stock for such consideration, if any, as the
Board may determine. Any such shares of preferred stock could have dividend, liquidation, conversion, voting or other rights, which
could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the holders of shares of Common Stock. In the event of such issuance, the
preferred stock could, among other items, be used as a method of discouraging, delaying or preventing a change in control of our
Company, which could have the effect of discouraging bids for our Company and thereby prevent security-holders from receiving the
maximum value for their shares of our Common Stock.

Lack of liquidity.

The shares of our Common Stock trade sporadically, if at all, on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol “CRYO.”
Consequently, holders of our Common Stock may not be able to liquidate their investment in the event of an emergency or at any
time. There can be no assurance that a robust market will ever develop for our Common Stock or, if developed, will continue or be
sufficiently liquid to enable the shareholders to liquidate their investment in us.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We currently rent office space at 188 East Bergen Place, Red Bank, NJ 07701 for our corporate offices. Additionally we rent
laboratory space at the Burlington County College Science Incubator 900 Briggs Road, Mount Laurel NJ 08054.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

None.

ITEM 4. (REMOVED AND RESERVED).
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PART II

ITEM 5 MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
REPURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock was listed on the OTCBB under the symbol “RAPP” on November 12, 2010. In June 2011 we changed our name
to American CryoStem Corporation and since June 15, 2011, our common stock has traded on the OTCBB under the stock symbol
“CRYO.” The following table shows the reported high and low closing bid prices per share for our common stock for each quarterly
period since our common stock was first listed based on information provided by the OTCBB. The over-the-counter market quotations
set forth for our common stock reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not necessarily
represent actual transactions.

2011 Fiscal Year  High   Low  
First Quarter  $ 0.70  $ 0.70 
Second Quarter  $ 3.75  $ 0.25 
Third Quarter  $ 3.75  $ 0.75 
Fourth Quarter  $ 3.25  $ 0.28 

 
As of September 30, 2011 we had 26,475,662 shares of our common stock outstanding and the number of stockholders of record of
our common stock was 56.

DIVIDENDS

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends to
stockholders in the foreseeable future. In addition, any future determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of our
board of directors and will be dependent upon our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, and such other
factors as the board deem relevant.

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE REGISTRANT AND AFFILIATED PURCHASERS

There were no purchases of our equity securities by us or any affiliated purchasers during any month within the fourth quarter of the
fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

As previously reported in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 27, 2011, we issued 21,000,000 shares of
common stock to ACS Global in connection with our acquisition of the assets of ACS Global and we sold to certain accredited
investors in a private offering 1,860,000 shares of common stock at a purchase price of $0.50 per share. Following the closing of the
Asset Purchase Agreement we sold to certain accredited investors in a private offering, an additional 712,300 shares of common
stock at a purchase price of $0.50. The shares were issued pursuant to the exemptions from the registration requirements of the
Securities Act provided under Regulation D and Rule 506 promulgated thereunder.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

This item is not applicable because we are a smaller reporting company.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS.
 
Forward-looking Statements
We and our representatives may from time to time make written or oral statements that are “forward-looking,” including statements
contained in this annual report and other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), reports to our
stockholders and news releases. All statements that express expectations, estimates, forecasts or projections are forward-looking
statements. In addition, other written or oral statements which constitute forward-looking statements may be made by us or on our
behalf. Words such as “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “seek,” “estimate,” “project,” “forecast,” “may,” “should,”
variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These statements are not
guarantees of future performance and involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions which are difficult to predict. Therefore, actual
outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in or suggested by such forward-looking statements.
We undertake no obligation to update or revise any of the forward-looking statements after the date of this annual report to conform
forward-looking statements to actual results. Important factors on which such statements are based are assumptions concerning
uncertainties, including but not limited to, uncertainties associated with the following:

 • Inadequate capital and barriers to raising the additional capital or to obtaining the financing needed to implement our
business plan;

 • Our failure to earn revenues or profits;
 • Inadequate capital to continue business;
 • Volatility or decline of our stock price;
 • Potential fluctuation in quarterly results;
 • Rapid and significant changes in markets;
 • Litigation with or legal claims and allegations by outside parties; and
 • Insufficient revenues to cover operating costs.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes thereto which are included in this
annual report. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual
results may differ substantially from those anticipated in any forward-looking statements included in this discussion as a result of
various factors.

Background
We were incorporated in the State of Nevada on March 13, 2009 under the name R&A Productions, Inc. On April 20, 2011, we
acquired, through our wholly owned subsidiary American CryoStem Acquisition Corporation, substantially all of the assets from, and
assumed substantially all of the liabilities of, ACS Global, Inc. (“ACS Global”) in exchange for our issuance of 21,000,000 shares of
our common stock, par value $0.001 per share, to ACS Global (the “Asset Purchase”). We filed a Current Report on Form 8-K with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 27, 2011 disclosing the Asset Purchase and certain related matters including, but
not limited to, the appointment of our present officers and directors as well as the resignation as such by the former chief executive
officer and sole director. Our fiscal year ends September 30 of each calendar year.

Overview of our Business
We currently operate the stem cell business we acquired in the Asset Purchase, we have discontinued the operations of the movie
production business in the fourth quarter of 2011.
 
Stem Cell Business
Our principal line of business is the business acquired from ACS Global. ACS Global has developed a method to collect process and
store adipose (fat) Derived Adult Stem Cells (“Stem Cells”), permitting individuals to preserve their Stem Cells for potential future use
in cell therapy.

We believe that we will be able to store Stem Cells for adults charging a fixed fee which includes the first year of storage fees.
Thereafter, we intend to have clients be responsible for the payment of an annual storage fee. We believe that Stem Cells are
currently being used in the emerging field of regenerative medicine globally and have the potential to become a multibillion dollar
industry in the future. We further believe that Stem Cells have the potential to heal a substantial number of diseases and chronic
conditions and that we will be able to provide a streamlined and affordable method to process and cryopreserve Stem Cells for
autologous (self) use in humans for the emerging regenerative medicine market.
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Current published medical research shows that Stem Cells can be used to support tissue repair and cell therapies to expedite healing
of wounds, burns and physical trauma to joints, bone, muscle, tendons and ligaments. Effects of diseases that we believe can be
alleviated through the use of Stem Cells include cardiovascular disease, cancer, stroke, central nervous disorders and diabetes. We
also believe that the near-term applications include the use of processed Stem Cells as biocompatible fillers in cosmetic and
reconstructive surgery. Although our Stem Cell business is in its initial stage, we anticipate that we will be able to provide the
following services:
 
 • Collecting an individual’s adipose tissue through a participating doctor who will forward the tissue to our laboratory;
   
 • Processing the tissue in a laboratory to separate the component parts of an individual’s adipose tissue, which includes

Stem Cells and other regenerative cells; and
   
 • Cryopreserving adipose tissue and Stem Cells for immediate use or long-term storage.
 
The Stem Cells will be prepared and cryopreserved in their raw form without manipulation, bio-generation or the addition of
biomarkers or other materials, which we believe may make such Stem Cells suitable for use in cellular treatments (i.e., the
biomedical use of Stem Cells to treat patients) currently offered by existing and planned treatment centers worldwide. We believe that
affordably preserving cells derived from adipose tissue can provide a user with the opportunity to take advantage of the emerging
field of regenerative medicine, i.e., healing the body using one’s own stem cells.

In September of 2011 we completed the required testing, validation and verification of our core processing methodology and
laboratory equipment. The laboratory is located in the science incubator on the Campus of the Burlington Community College located
in Mount Laurel, NJ. In anticipation of the completion of this intensive testing process and the commencement of commercial
operations, we expanded our overall leased space at the facility to approximately 1300 square feet. Following the acquisition of this
new space we began to acquire additional equipment and hired and trained additional staff. This additional laboratory facility will
allow us to quickly expand our processing capabilities and expand our current product and services development.

On August 2, 2011, we were awarded US Patent No. US 7,989,205 B2, titled Cell Culture Media, Kits, and Methods of Use. This
Patent was assigned to us by our Chief Scientist, Dr. David Moscatello in 2010 and was originally filed on October 4, 2006. We have
continued to develop tools, and cellular processing methods that have the potential to result in new products and services being
offered for commercial sale and licensing at a future date. Management cannot predict if a market for these products will develop and
therefore cannot predict the potential impact these new products will have upon our revenue.

Movie Production Business
 
Following the completion of the Asset purchase Agreement with ACS Global, we continued to operate our movie production business
as a separate division during the third quarter to review its operations and projects. Following the review the Compnay decided in the
fourth quarter to discontinue its operations and the results for the fiscal year are listed under “Discontinued Operations“financial
statement herein.
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Plan of Operations – Stem Cell Business
We have begun a direct marketing program focused upon doctors and have an initial group of providers that we anticipate will offer
our services to their patients. This marketing program has been implemented using a traditional sales approach common to the
pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries. This basic approach is the core of our marketing activities and will be expanded using a
combination of in-house sales personnel and independent channels. In addition, we anticipate engaging in a comprehensive
integrated marketing campaign through various media such as the Internet, video, print, TV, radio and trade shows to initiate the
education of medical professionals and their patients to promote awareness of our company and our products. The essence of this
educational strategy is to reach the end-users as quickly as possible and to accelerate the adoption curve of our services. In addition,
we plan to utilize outside marketing resources to increase the number of surgeons who are willing to offer our services to their
patients.

The combination of a traditional sales approach supported by continuous marketing will be coordinated with the expansion of our
laboratory processing capabilities. In preparation for our commercial operations, we have doubled the laboratory space that we are
leasing at the Burlington County College (“BCC”) science incubator. Additionally, we are hiring and training the required laboratory
personnel to operate the additional commercial processing laboratory.

We intend to pursue opportunities to generate revenue from the development of our intellectual property. This intellectual property
also includes processing and testing methods developed in our laboratories that may be licensed to researchers and other companies
currently researching and developing cellular therapies and regenerative medicine products. Management believes that as the
adipose derived adult stem cell business continues to grow there is an opportunity to assist them in the development of their products
and services through sale of our developed products, licensing of our processing and testing methods and potential collaborative
development opportunities. Although our management intends to pursue these new lines of business, there can be no assurance that
we will be able to generate additional revenue from these sources.

Cash Requirements – Stem Cell Business
We will require additional capital to fund marketing, operational expansion, processing staff training, as well as for working
capital. We have minimal long term debt and have been able to meet our past financial obligations on a current basis.

We cannot assure you we can attract sufficient capital to enable us to fully fund our anticipated cash requirements. In addition, we
cannot assure you that the requisite financing, whether over the short or long term, will be raised within the necessary time frame or
on terms acceptable to us, if at all. Should we be unable to raise sufficient funds we may be required to curtail our operating plans if
not cease them entirely. As a result, we cannot assure you that we will be able to operate profitably on a consistent basis, or at all, in
the future.
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We expended $324,465 during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 in professional fees (principally legal and accounting). In
addition, we expended $300,247 following the closing on April 21, 2011, of our purchase of the stem cell business for certain liabilities
we assumed, the hiring and training of new staff and for the expansion of our sales, marketing and business development network.

Going Concern
As of the date of this annual report, there is substantial doubt regarding our ability to continue as a going concern as we have not
generated sufficient cash flow to fund our proposed Stem Cell business.

We have suffered recurring losses from operations since our inception. In addition, we have yet to generate an internal cash flow
from our business operations or successfully raised the financing required to expand our Stem Cell business. As a result of these and
other factors, our independent auditor has expressed substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. Our future
success and viability, therefore, are dependent upon our ability to generate capital financing. The failure to generate sufficient
revenues or raise additional capital may have a material and adverse effect upon us and our shareholders.

Our plans with regard to these matters encompass the following actions: (i) obtaining funding from new investors to alleviate our
working capital deficiency, and (ii) implementing a plan to generate sales of our proposed products. Our continued existence is
dependent upon our ability to resolve our liquidity problems and achieve profitability in our current business operations. However, the
outcome of management’s plans cannot be ascertained with any degree of certainty. Our financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of these risks and uncertainties.

Commitments
As of the date of this annual report, the company’s material capital commitments were (I) the continued funding of the expansion of
our marketing efforts and laboratory processing capabilities, (ii) an equipment lease in the amount of $78,540 for laboratory
equipment with monthly payments of $1,869.74 and the final payment due March 2015, and (iii) the current lease for the laboratory
spaces at the Burlington County College Science Incubator, Laboratory 110 and 108, Each Laboratory lease requires  a monthly
payment of $1,650. The lease for each laboratory is renewable annually in December (Lab 110) and April (Lab 108).

The Company in connection with the closing of the Asset Purchase Agreement assumed (i) an unsecured note payable in the face
amount of $65,000 with interest payable upon maturity of 6%. The current balace due is $68,575. The note matures October 31,
2012 (ii) unsecured liabilities without interest of $134,812 due to ACS Global, the majority shareholder of the Company, for certain
prepaid expenses made by ACS Global prior to the closing of the transaction, there is no due date associated with this liability.
 
We anticipate that any further capital commitments that may be incurred will be financed principally through the issuance of our
securities. However, we cannot assure you that additional financing will be available to us on a timely basis, on acceptable terms, or
at all.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital
resources that are material to investors.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of the Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2011 to the Year Ended September 30, 2010:

Revenue. Our total revenue was $4,995 for the 12 months ended September 30, 2011 exclusive of discontinued operations,
compared to $0 for the same period ended September 30, 2010.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A”) for the 12 months ended
September 30, 2011 were $1,294,434, as compared to SG&A of $186,324 for the 12 months ended September 30, 2010.

Net Income (Loss). Our net loss for the 12 months ended September 30, 2011 was $(1,290,495), compared to a net Loss of
$(32,650) for the year ended September 30, 2010.
 
 

14

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity and Financial Position
 
As shown in the accompanying financial statements, the Company incurred a net loss of $1,290,495 for the year ended September
30, 2011 as compared to net loss of $32,650 for the previously fiscal period ended September 30, 2010. At the year ended
September 30, 2011 the Company's current assets were $163,266 and the total assets were $561,283 and its liabilities were
$398,017. The Company’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $163,226.

Outlook We have worked with minimal capital to date the Company is in the early stages of marketing its services following the
recent completion of the necessary scientific validation and verification work in September of 2011. The Company will be accelerating
its marketing strategies and expand its marketing efforts subject to available capital and the success of its sales strategies. The
Company has also identified several additional products and services that are complimentary to the current services of collecting,
processing and storage of adipose derived stem cells.

The Company is also aggressively pursuing additional marketing opportunities with its target doctor market to further expand the
delivery of its services to clients. These additional marketing programs are designed to provide a constant flow of clients interested in
taking advantage of the Company’s services and the burgeoning cellular therapy and regenerative medicine market. The Company is
currently in the process of raising additional capital to support these marketing programs.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
We had a cash balance of $107,330 as of the date of this annual report. Our principal source of funds has been sales of our
securities.

Should we be unable to raise sufficient funds, we will be required to curtail our operating plans if not cease them entirely. We cannot
assure you that we will generate the necessary funding to operate or develop our business. Please see “Cash Requirements – Stem
Cell Business” above for our existing plans with respect to raising the capital we believe will be required.

In the event that we are able to obtain the necessary financing to move forward with our business plan, we expect that our expenses
will increase significantly as we attempt to grow our business. Accordingly, the financing required may not be sufficient and must be
considered in light these circumstances.

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States. Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses. These estimates and assumptions are affected by management’s application of
accounting policies. Critical accounting policies include revenue recognition, impairment of marketing rights and accounting for legal
contingencies.

We recognize revenue in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No.101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements.” Sales
are recorded when products are shipped to customers. Provisions for discounts and rebates to customers, estimated returns and
allowances and other adjustments are provided for in the same period the related sales are recorded.

We evaluate our long-lived assets for financial impairment on a regular basis. At the time such evaluations indicate that the future
discounted cash flows of certain long-lived assets are not sufficient to recover the carrying value of such assets, the assets are
adjusted to their fair values.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

ASU No. 2011-02; A Creditor’s Determination of Whether a Restructuring Is a Troubled Debt Restructuring (“TDR”).  In April, 2011,
the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-02, intended to provide additional guidance to assist creditors in determining whether a restructuring
of a receivable meets the criteria to be considered a troubled debt restructuring. The amendments in this ASU are effective for the
first interim or annual period beginning on or after June 15, 2011, and are to be applied retrospectively to the beginning of the annual
period of adoption. As a result of applying these amendments, an entity may identify receivables that are newly considered impaired.
Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of ASU No. 2011-02 will not have a material affect on the Company’s financial statements.
 
ASU No. 2011-04; Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and
IFRSs.   In May, 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04. The amendments in this ASU generally represent clarifications of Topic
820, but also include some instances where a particular principle or requirement for measuring fair value or disclosing information
about fair value measurements has changed.  This ASU results in common principles and requirements for measuring fair value and
for disclosing information about fair value measurements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and IFRSs.  The amendments in this ASU
are to be applied prospectively. For public entities, the amendments are effective during interim and annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2011. Early application by public entities is not permitted. The Company will adopt the methodologies prescribed by
this ASU by the date required, and does not anticipate that the ASU will have a material effect on its financial position or results of
operations.

Critical Accounting Policies
We prepare financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), which requires us to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in our combined and consolidated financial statements and related
notes. We periodically evaluate these estimates and assumptions based on the most recently available information, our own
historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Since the use of estimates is an integral component of the financial reporting process, actual results could differ from those
estimates. Some of our accounting policies require higher degrees of judgment than others in their application. We believe the
following accounting policies involve the most significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements.

Basis of Presentation. Our financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United State of America, whereby revenues are recognized in the period earned and expenses
when incurred.

Management’s Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Long-Lived Assets. We review and evaluate our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their net book value may not be recoverable. When such factors and circumstances exist, we compare the assets’
carrying amounts against the estimated undiscounted cash flows to be generated by those assets over their estimated useful lives. If
the carrying amounts are greater than the undiscounted cash flows, the fair values of those assets are estimated by discounting the
projected cash flows. Any excess of the carrying amounts over the fair values are recorded as impairments in that fiscal period.
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Statement of Cash Flows. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, we consider all highly liquid investments (i.e., investments
which, when purchased, have original maturities of three months or less) to be cash equivalents.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents approximates the
recorded amounts because of the liquidity and short-term nature of these items.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
We have reviewed all recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting pronouncements and do not believe that any future adoption of
such pronouncements will have a material impact on our financial condition or the results of our operations.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

This item is not applicable because we are a smaller reporting company.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
 
We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of American CryoStem Corporation (fka R & A Productions, Inc.) as of September
30, 2011, and the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended September 30, 2011. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of American
CryoStem Corporation (fka R & A Productions, Inc.) as of September 30, 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
the year ended September 30, 2011, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern.  As
discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring losses and negative cash flows from operations
that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern.  Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also
discussed in Note 2.  The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
 
Donahue Associates LLC
 
Monmouth Beach, New Jersey
 
January 3, 2012
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MALCOLM L. POLLARD, Inc.

4845 W. LAKE ROAD, # 119
ERIE, PA 16505
(814)838-8258

FAX (814838-8452
 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
 
Board of Directors
R&A Productions, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of R&A Productions, Inc as of September 30, 2010, and the related statements of
operations, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended September 30, 2010.  These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conduct our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

The Company has not generated significant revenues or profits to date. This factor, among others, raises substantial doubt about its
ability to continue as a going concern.  The Company’s continuation as a going concern depends upon its ability to generate sufficient
cash flow to conduct its operations and its ability to obtain additional sources of capital and financing.  The accompanying financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company
at September 30, 2010 and  the results of its operations, changes in shareholders’ equity,  and its cash flows for the year ended
September 30, 2010, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting standards.

Malcolm L. Pollard, Inc.
Erie, Pennsylvania
December 3, 2010
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American CryoStem Corporation
(fka R & A Productions, Inc.)

Balance Sheets
As of September 30, 2011 and 2010

  30-Sep-11   30-Sep-10  
ASSETS       
Current assets:       

Cash  $ 107,330  $ 1,510 
Prepaid expense   18,062   0 
Total current assets  $ 125,392  $ 1,510 

         
Other assets:         

Security deposits   3,300   0 
Patent   98,913   0 
Equipment- net   333,678   58,888 

         
Total assets  $ 561,283  $ 60,398 

         
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY         
         
Current liabilities:         

Accounts payable & accrued expenses  $ 128,586  $ 0 
Capital lease payable   16,584   0 

Total current liabilities  $ 145,170  $ 0 
         

Note payable to shareholder   68,575   0 
Capital lease payable   49,460   0 
Payable to shareholder   134,812   0 

         
Shareholders’ equity:         

Common stock- $.001 par value, 300,000,000 shares authorized, issued and
outstanding, 5,552,764 shares at September 30, 2010 and 26,475,662 at September
30, 2011  $ 26,476  $ 5,553 

Additional paid in capital   1,448,180   75,740 
Accumulated deficit   (1,311,390)   (20,895)

Total shareholders’ equity   163,266   60,398 
         

Total Liabilities & Shareholders’ Equity  $ 561,283  $ 60,398 

See the notes to the financial statements.
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American CryoStem Corporation
(fka R & A Productions, Inc.)

Statements of Operations
For the Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

  30-Sep-11   30-Sep-10  
       
Net sales revenue  $ 4,995  $ 0 
Cost of sales   (1,410)   0 

Gross margin on sales  $ 3,585  $ 0 
         
General and administrative expenses:         

Professional fees  $ 324,465  $ 0 
Research & development   176,836   0 
Administration   793,133   0 

Total general & administrative expenses   1,294,434   0 
         
Net loss from operations  $ (1,290,849)  $ 0 
         
Other income (expenses):         

Interest income   774   0 
Interest expense   (4,718)   0 

         
Net loss before provision for income taxes  $ (1,294,793)  $ 0 
         
Provision for income taxes   0   0 
         
Loss before discontinued operations   (1,294,793)   0 
         
Discontinued operations (net of tax)   4,298   (32,650)
         
Net loss  $ (1,290,495)  $ (32,650)

         
Basic & fully diluted net loss per common share:         
Net gain (loss) - continuing operations  $ (0.087)  $ 0.000 
Net gain (loss)- discontinued operations  $ 0.000  $ (0.006)
Basic & fully diluted net loss per common share  $ (0.087)  $ (0.006)

         
Weighted average of common shares outstanding:         

Basic & fully diluted   14,893,895   5,552,764 

See the notes to the financial statements.
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American CryoStem Corporation
(fka R & A Productions, Inc.)
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

  30-Sep-11   30-Sep-10  
Operating Activities:       

Net loss  $ (1,290,495)  $ (32,650)
Adjustments to reconcile net income items not requiring the use of cash:         

Consulting fees   363,751   30 
Impairment expense   65,359   0 
Depreciation expense   14,788   12,288 

Changes in other operating assets and liabilities :         
Prepaid expense   (18,062)   0 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses   44,431   (8,074)

Net cash used by operations  $ (820,228)  $ (28,406)
         
Investing activities:         

Purchase of patents & trademarks  $ (46,294)  $ 0 
Purchase of equipment   (83,924)   (9,684)

Net cash used by investing activities   (130,218)   (9,684)
         
Financing activities:         

Issuance of common stock  $ 1,286,000  $ 31,500 
Sale of treasury stock   (355,000)   0 
Payment of capital lease   (9,546)   0 
Payable to shareholder   134,812   0 

Net cash provided by financing activities   1,056,266   31,500 
         
Net increase (decrease) in cash  $ 105,820  $ (6,590)
         
Cash balance at beginning of the fiscal year   1,510   8,100 
         
Cash balance at September 30th  $ 107,330  $ 1,510 

         
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:         

Interest paid during the fiscal year  $ 4,718  $ 0 
Income taxes paid during the fiscal year  $ 0  $ 0 

See the notes to the financial statements.
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American CryoStem Corporation
(fka R & A Productions, Inc.)

Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For the Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

  Common   Par   Paid in   Retained   Total  
  Shares   Value   Capital   Deficit   Equity  
                
Balance at September 30, 2009   5,432,764  $ 5,433  $ 44,330  $ 11,755  $ 61,518 
                     
Issuance of common stock   90,000   90   31,410       31,500 
                     
Issued shares for services   30,000   30           30 
                     
Net loss               (32,650)   (32,650)
                     
Balance at September 30, 2010   5,552,764  $ 5,553  $ 75,740  $ (20,895)  $ 60,398 
                     
Issuance of common stock   2,572,000   2,572   1,283,428       1,286,000 
                     
Sale of treasury stock   (3,376,902)   (3,377)   (351,623)       (355,000)
                     
Purchase of AMCY   21,000,000   21,000   77,612       98,612 
                     
Issued shares for services   727,500   728   363,023       363,751 
                     
Net loss               (1,290,495)   (1,290,495)
                     
Balance at September 30, 2011   26,475,362  $ 26,476  $ 1,448,180  $ (1,311,390)  $ 163,266 

See the notes to the financial statements.
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American CryoStem Corporation
(fka R & A Productions, Inc.)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

NOTE 1.  Organization of the Company and Significant Accounting Policies
 
American CryoStem Corporation (the “Company”) is a publicly held corporation formed on March 13, 2009 in the state of Nevada as
R&A Productions Inc. (R&A)
 
In April 2011, R&A purchased substantially all the assets and liabilities of American CryoStem Corporation (ACS) for 21 million shares
of common stock.  The Company was deemed to be the accounting acquirer.  At that time, the former operations of R&A were
discontinued and the name of the company was changed to American CryoStem Corporation.
 
The Company is in the business of collecting adipose tissue, processing it to separate the adult stem cells, and preparing such stem
cells for long-term storage. The process allows individuals to preserve their stem cells for future personal use in cellular therapy.  The
adipose derived stem cells are prepared and stored in their raw form without manipulation, bio-generation or the addition of
biomarkers or other materials, making them suitable for use in cellular treatments and therapies offered by existing and planned
treatment centers worldwide. Individualized collection and storage of adult stem cells provides personalized medicine solutions by
making the patient’s own preserved stem cells available for future cellular therapies.

On August 2, 2011 The Company was issued US Patent No. 7,989,205 “Cell Culture Media, Kits and Methods of Use” The Company
is in the process of further developing a full product line based on this patent will be offered for sale in early 2012. The media
products are designed specifically to enhance growth and differentiation of adipose derived cells The Company expects to initially
produce and fulfill orders from its laboratory.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) uniformly applied requires management to make reasonable estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of the assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses at the date of the financial statements and for the period they include.  Actual results may differ from these estimates.
 
Cash and interest bearing deposits - For the purpose of calculating changes in cash flows, cash includes all cash balances and highly
liquid short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.
 
Revenue Recognition – The Company recognizes revenue from the processing of adipose tissue into usable stem cells once all the
procedures have been performed and collection is reasonably assured.  Storage revenues for the stem cells are charged on an
annual basis and recognized when they are received or due to be received.
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Long Lived Assets - The Company reviews for the impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when estimated future
cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition is less than its carrying amount.

Equipment - Equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
life of the assets, which is estimated as follows:

 Office equipment 5 years
 Lab equipment & furniture 7 years
 Lab software 5 years
 
Income taxes - The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles which require
an asset and liability approach to financial accounting and reporting for income taxes.  Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
computed annually for differences between financial statement and income tax bases of assets and liabilities that will result in taxable
income or deductible expenses in the future based on enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences
are expected to affect taxable income.  Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets and
liabilities to the amount expected to be realized.  Income tax expense is the tax payable or refundable for the period adjusted for the
change during the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

The Company follows the accounting requirements associated with uncertainty in income taxes using the provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) ASC 740, Income Taxes. Using that guidance, tax positions initially need to be recognized in the
financial statements when it is more likely than not the positions will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities.  It also
provides guidance for derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition.  As
of September 30, 2011, the Company has no uncertain tax positions that qualify for either recognition or disclosure in the financial
statements.  All tax returns from fiscal years 2009 to 2010 are subject to IRS audit.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:
 
ASU No. 2011-02; A Creditor’s Determination of Whether a Restructuring Is a Troubled Debt Restructuring (“TDR”).  In April, 2011,
the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-02, intended to provide additional guidance to assist creditors in determining whether a restructuring
of a receivable meets the criteria to be considered a troubled debt restructuring. The amendments in this ASU are effective for the
first interim or annual period beginning on or after June 15, 2011, and are to be applied retrospectively to the beginning of the annual
period of adoption. As a result of applying these amendments, an entity may identify receivables that are newly considered impaired.
Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of ASU No. 2011-02 will not have a material affect on the Company’s financial statements.
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ASU No. 2011-04; Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and
IFRSs.   In May, 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04. The amendments in this ASU generally represent clarifications of Topic
820, but also include some instances where a particular principle or requirement for measuring fair value or disclosing information
about fair value measurements has changed.  This ASU results in common principles and requirements for measuring fair value and
for disclosing information about fair value measurements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and IFRSs.  The amendments in this ASU
are to be applied prospectively. For public entities, the amendments are effective during interim and annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2011. Early application by public entities is not permitted. The Company will adopt the methodologies prescribed by
this ASU by the date required, and does not anticipate that the ASU will have a material effect on its financial position or results of
operations.

NOTE 2.  Going Concern
 
The accompanying financial statements have been presented in accordance with GAAP, which assumes the continuity of the
Company as a going concern.  However, the Company has incurred significant losses since its inception and has no material
revenues to date and continues to rely on financing and the issuance of shares to raise capital to fund its business operations.
Management’s plans with regard to this matter are as follows:
 
The Company has been actively engaged in creating and implementing its new business model. In connection with this process,
management of the Company has raised $1,286,000 under SEC Rule 506 during the year ended September 30, 2011, and retained
the services of new corporate advisors and consultants. Additionally the Company has entered into a non-exclusive agreement with a
registered broker-dealer pursuant to which such broker-dealer has committed to raise up to $3 Million in new equity on a best efforts
basis through the sale of the Company’s securities.
 
The Company plans to continue to fund its operations through capital fundraising activities in 2012 until the new commercial facilities
generate sufficient revenue to support its operations.
 
The Company, in pursuing the new business model, has developed what it believes to be several patentable technologies and
business methods. The Company has filed its initial patent and several trademark applications and expects to file additional patents
by the end of fiscal year 2012.
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NOTE 3.  Earnings per Share
 
The Company applies SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share” to calculate earnings/(loss) per share.  In accordance with SFAS No.
128, basic earnings and net loss per share have been computed based on the weighted average of common shares outstanding
during the years.  There are no financial instruments outstanding that are convertible into common stock at September 30, 2011.

Net earnings/(losses) per share are computed as follows:

  30-Sep-11   30-Sep-10  
       
Net gain (loss) - continuing operations  $ (1,294,793)  $ 0 
Net gain (loss)- discontinued operations  $ 4,298  $ (32,650)
         
Weighted average shares outstanding   14,893,895   5,552,764 

         
Basic & fully diluted net loss per common share:         
Net gain (loss) - continuing operations  $ (0.088)  $ 0.000 
Net gain (loss)- discontinued operations  $ 0.000  $ (0.006)
Basic & fully diluted net loss per common share  $ (0.087)  $ (0.006)

 
NOTE 4.  Equipment

The equipment accounts of the Company are comprised as follows.

  30-Sep-11   30-Sep-10  
       
Office equipment  $ 16,106  $ 73,184 
Lab furniture   642   0 
Lab equipment   219,414   0 
Lab software   110,000   0 
Accumulated depreciation   (12,484)   (14,296)
         
Equipment- net  $ 333,678  $ 58,888 
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Lab equipment includes the leasing of equipment valued at $79,000.  Depreciation expense on this leased asset for the year ended
September 30, 2011 was $5,040.
 
The assets of the former company, R&A, were deemed by management to be impaired and the Company recognized an impairment
expense of $65,359 in its statement of operations for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011.
 
NOTE 5. Patent
 
On August 2, 2011, the Company was awarded U.S. Patent No. US 7,989,205 B2, titled Cell Culture Media, Kits, and Methods of
Use. The Patent is for cell culture media kits for the support of primary culture of normal non-hematopoietic cells of mesodermal origin
suitable for both research and clinical applications.
 
NOTE 6.  Note Payable
 
An unsecured note payable to a shareholder was acquired by the Company in the asset purchase in April 2011 previously
discussed.  The note is for $65,000 and carries an interest rate of 6% and is due in October 2012.  The note plus accrued interest on
the note was $68,575 at September 30, 2011.
 
The Company has an unsecured liability without interest of $134,812 due to ACS Global, the majority shareholder of the Company,
for certain expenses paid by ACS Global in connection with the asset purchase transaction of April 2011. There is no maturity date
associated with this liability.
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NOTE 7. Income Taxes  
 
Provision for income taxes is comprised of the following:       
  30-Sep-11   30-Sep-10  
       
Net loss before provision for income taxes  $ (1,294,793)  $ 0 

         
Current tax expense:         

Federal  $ 0  $ 0 
State   0   0 
Total  $ 0  $ 0 

         
Less deferred tax benefit:         

Tax loss carryforwards   (557,959)   (8,163)
Allowance for recoverability   557,959   8,163 
Provision for income taxes  $ 0  $ 0 

         
A reconciliation of provision for income taxes at the statutory rate to provision for income taxes

at the Company's effective tax rate is as follows:         
         
Statutory U.S. federal rate   34%   34%
Statutory state and local income tax   10%   10%
Less allowance for tax recoverability   -44%   -44%
Effective rate   0%   0%

         
Deferred income taxes are comprised of the following:         
         
Tax loss carryforwards  $ 557,959  $ 8,163 
Allowance for recoverability   (557,959)   (8,163)
Deferred tax benefit  $ 0  $ 0 

 
Note:  The deferred tax benefits arising from the timing differences begin to expire in fiscal year 2030 and may not be recoverable
upon the purchase of the Company under current IRS statutes.
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NOTE 8.  Commitments & Contingencies
 
Operating Leases - The Company has two operating leases for its laboratory facilities at the Burlington County College Science
Incubator in Mt. Laurel, New Jersey.  Each lease is for a term of one year with a monthly rent of $1,650 per laboratory. The total rent
for laboratory facilities for the year ended September 30, 2011 was $16,545.

Capital Lease – The Company has a capital lease for laboratory equipment. The minimum lease payments due on the capital lease
are as follows.
 

2012  $ 22,440 
2013   22,440 
2014   22,440 
2015   11,220 

     
Total minimum lease payments  $ 78,540 
     
Less amounts representing interest   (12,496)
     
Present value of net minimum lease payments  $ 66,044 

 
NOTE 9.  Common Stock Transactions

In fiscal 2010, the Company initiated a Private Reg D 506 Offering for the sale of 735,000 shares of common stock. During the year
the Company sold 90,000 shares of its common stock and received proceeds of $31,500.
 
In March of 2010, the company issued 30,000 shares of common stock at par value to the Company’s president for services rendered
in lieu of cash.
 
In December of 2010, 670,000 shares were issued to the former president of R&A for services rendered. The shares issuance was
valued at $335,000.

On April 20, 2011, the Company purchased 3,376,902 shares of common stock from the former president of R&A for $355,000. The
shares were recorded as treasury stock and immediately cancelled by the Company for no proceeds.

On April 20, 2011, the Company issued 21,000,000 shares of common stock to purchase substantially all the assets and liabilities of
ACS.  Upon issuance of these shares, ACS became the majority shareholder of the Company. The assets and liabilities acquired in
the transaction were valued at $98,612
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During the year ended September 30, 2011, the Company issued 2,572,000 shares of common stock and received net proceeds of
$1,286,000.
 
During the year ended September 30, 2011, the Company issued 57,500 shares of common stock for services rendered at a cost of
$28,751.

NOTE 10.  Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Cash, prepaid expense, security deposit, accounts payable and accrued expenses, capital lease payable, payable to shareholder,
and note payable to shareholder in the balance sheet are estimated to approximate fair market value at September 30, 2011.

NOTE 11.  Reliance on Key Personnel
 
The Company largely relies on the efforts of its Chief Operating Officer and its Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of its Board of
Directors.  A withdrawal of the efforts of the Chief Operating Officer or the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman would have a
material adverse affect on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
 
NOTE 12.  Litigation
 
The Company is not party to any pending litigation against it and is not aware of any litigation contemplated against it as of
September 30, 2011 and the date of these financial statements.

NOTE 13.  Subsequent Events
 
The Company has made a review of material subsequent events from September 30, 2011 through the date of this report and found
no material subsequent events reportable during this period.
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PART III

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

On June 22, 2011, our board of directors approved the dismissal of Malcolm Pollard, Inc. (“Pollard”) as our independent registered
public accounting firm, and engaged Donahue Associates, LLC (“Donahue”) as our independent registered public accounting firm to
audit our financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2011. We filed a Current Report on Form 8-K with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on June 27, 2011 reporting the change in our independent registered public accounting firm.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our
Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and
forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
our Treasurer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure
controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can
provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management necessarily is required to apply its
judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

As of September 30, 2011, our Chief Executive Officer and our Treasurer evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act). Based on such evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer
and our Treasurer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of September 30, 2011.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Treasurer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission and the interpretive guidance issued by the SEC in Release No. 34-559239. Based on this evaluation,
management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of September 30, 2011.

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm
This annual report does not include an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm regarding internal
control over financial reporting. Our management’s report was not subject to attestation by our independent registered public
accounting firm pursuant to rules of the SEC that permit us to provide only management’s report in this annual report.

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

Executive Officers and Directors
 
The names of the Company’s current officers and directors, as well as certain information about them, are set forth below:
 

Name Age Position(s)
John Arnone 53 President, CEO and Chairman of the Board
Anthony Dudzinski 48 COO, Treasurer, Secretary and Director

John S. Arnone
Mr. Arnone has served as our President, CEO and Chairman of our Board of Directors since April 2011. Mr. Arnone has also served
since February 2009 and continues to serve as a director and the Secretary of ACS Global, Inc. our majority shareholder. Mr. Arnone
has spent the last 25 years in the investment banking/financial consulting industry as an investment banker, management consultant
and a hands-on investor specializing in strategic planning, corporate structure, administration and new business development. Over a
period of 20 years, Mr. Arnone founded and managed two general securities broker-dealers based in New York. Mr. Arnone also co-
founded and operated a global entertainment distribution corporation with 120 employees that under Mr. Arnone’s guidance was
voted medium wholesaler of the year in the music industry (1997, 1998 and 2000) by the National Association of Recording
Merchants. Mr. Arnone has provided advisory and business management services as a founder, officer, director and/or shareholder to
both mid-level and development stage private and public companies. Mr. Arnone holds a degree in Business Administration and a BA
in Economics from Kean University in New Jersey.

Anthony F. Dudzinski
Mr. Dudzinski has served as our COO, Treasurer and Secretary and as a member of our Board of Directors since April 2011. Mr.
Dudzinski has also served since February 2009 and continues to serve as a director and the President and Secretary of ACS Global,
Inc. our majority shareholder. Mr. Dudzinski has more than 25 years of experience in a variety of areas of senior management with a
variety of both public and private companies. Mr. Dudzinski’s past positions include chief executive officer, president, chief operating
officer and director of small and medium-size organizations including a publicly traded company with approximately 300 employees
and president and chief operating officer of a privately operated broker-dealer with more than 175 sales associates. In addition to this
experience Mr. Dudzinski was a founder and chief executive officer of a number of publicly available exchange traded funds, and the
founder, chairman and chief operating officer of a target date fund complex and a Registered Investment Company.

Employment Agreements

We currently do not have any employment agreements in place with our officers or significant employees.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Not applicable

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board Committees
Our board of directors does not have separate audit, nominating or compensation committees. Our entire board of directors performs
the functions of these committees.

Audit Committee Financial Expert
We have not made a determination as to whether any of our directors would qualify as an audit committee financial expert.

Nominating Procedures
We have not adopted any procedures by which our security holders may recommend nominees to our board of directors
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CODE OF ETHICS
We have not adopted a code of ethics.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

Summary Compensation Table  

Name and Principal Position  Year  
Salary
($)  

Bonus
($)  

Stock
Awards
($)  

Option
Awards
($)  

Total
($)  

John S. Arnone  2011  21,082  —  —  —  21,082  
President and Chief Executive Officer  2010  —  —  —  —  —  
              
Anthony Dudzinski  2011  28,000  —  —  —  28,000  
Chief Financial Officer  2010  —  —  —  —  —  
              
Hector Medina, former CEO(1)  2011    —  —  —  —  

  
2010

   
2,530,000
Shares @ .001     2,530.00  

(1) Mr. Medina resigned all offices he held with us in April 2011.

Option Grants Table. There were no individual grants of stock options to purchase our common stock made to the executive officer
named in the Summary Compensation Table through September 30, 2011.

Compensation of Officers
We did not pay any salaries in 2011. We do not anticipate beginning to pay salaries until we have adequate funds to do so.

Compensation of Directors
We do not compensate any of our directors for their services as directors other than stock for their time. However, we do reimburse
our directors for expenses incurred in attending board meetings and issue stock for their time.

Option Plans

On September 18, 2011 our Board of Directors approved the “American CryoStem Corporation Incentive Stock Option Plan”. This
plan makes available up to 3,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.001 per share which may be optioned to
officers, directors, employees and consultants, collectively “employees”, under the authority of the Stock Option Plan Committee (the
“Committee”). Our current Board of Directors will serve as the initial Committee. The Plan further provides for the Committee to set
the terms of any Options granted at the time of the grant and terminates ten years from its effective date and is subject to final
shareholder approval. No options have been granted under plan and the Company intends to use the plan to attract and retain key
employees.

On September 18, 2011 our Board of Directors approved the Annual Bonus Performance Plan for Executive Officers. To promote the
success of our Company by providing to participating executives bonus incentives that qualify as performance-based compensation
within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended. The plan provides for the granting of up to
an aggregate amount of bonuses awarded to all Participants of up to 10% of our income before taxes. The pan shall be administered
by a Committee currently consisting of our Board of Directors. No bonuses have been granted under this plan during fiscal 2011.
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

There are no employment agreements in place at the year ended September 30, 2011. We plan to enter into employment
agreements with the executive officers in 2012.

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of the shares of our Common Stock by: (i) each
person who, to our knowledge, beneficially owns 5% or more of the shares of Common Stock and (ii) each of our directors and
officers. As of December 31, 2011, there were 26,897,662 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding.

Name  
Shares beneficially

owned (1)  
Percentage 

beneficially owned
      
Directors and Officers (2)      
John Arnone (3)  21,000,000  79.3%
Anthony Dudzinski (4)  21,000,000  79.3%
      
5% or Greater Beneficial Owners      
ACS Global, Inc.  21,000,000  79.3%
 
(1) Beneficial ownership is calculated based on the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding as of the date hereof, together
with securities exercisable or convertible into shares of Common Stock within sixty (60) days of the date hereof for each stockholder.
Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 of the Commission. The number of shares of Common Stock
beneficially owned by a person includes shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of securities and subject to options or
warrants held by that person that are currently convertible or exercisable or convertible or exercisable within sixty (60) days of the
date hereof. The shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to those convertible securities, options or warrants are deemed
outstanding for computing the percentage ownership of the person holding such convertible securities, options or warrants but are not
deemed outstanding for the purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.

(2) Unless otherwise specified, the address for the directors and officers is c/o American CryoStem Corporation at 188 Bergen Place,
Suite 204, Red Bank, NJ, 07701.

(3) Mr. Arnone presently owns 13,250,000 shares of common stock of ACS Global and has the right to receive an additional
12,000,000 such shares upon the conversion of Series C Preferred Stock of ACS Global owned by him. As a result, he beneficially
owns 45.7% percent of the ACS Global common stock. Mr. Arnone is also an officer and a director of ACS Global. Consequently, Mr.
Arnone is a control person of ACS Global and may as such be deemed to “beneficially own” the 21,000,000 shares of Common Stock
owned by ACS Global. Mr. Arnone, however, disclaims beneficial ownership of all such shares.

(4) Mr. Dudzinski presently owns 1,020,000 shares of ACS Global common stock and has the right to receive an additional
12,000,000 such shares upon the conversion of ACS Global preferred stock owned by him. As a result, he beneficially owns 24.5%
percent of the ACS Global common stock. Mr. Dudzinski is also an officer and a director of ACS Global. Consequently, Mr. Dudzinski
is a control person of ACS Global and may as such be deemed to “beneficially own” the 21,000,000 shares of Common Stock owned
by ACS Global. Mr. Dudzinski, however, disclaims beneficial ownership of all such shares.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans
The following table shows information about securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans as of September
30, 2011:

Plan Category  

Number of
Securities to

be issued upon
exercise of

outstanding options
(a)   

Weighted-
average exercise

price of
outstanding

(b)   

Number of Securities
remaining for future issuance
under equity compensation
plans (excluding securities

reflected in column (a))
(c)  

Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders   —   —   — 

             
Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders   3,000,000   —   3,000,000 
Total   3,000,000   —   3,000,000 
 
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On April 20, 2011, we acquired, through our wholly owned subsidiary American CryoStem Acquisition Corporation, substantially all of
the assets from, and assumed substantially all of the liabilities of, ACS Global, Inc. (formerly known as American CryoStem
Corporation) a Nevada corporation (“ACS Global”), in exchange for 21,000,000 shares of our common stock.  At the time of the
acquisition, John Arnone, our Chairman of the Board, CEO and President was a director and the secretary of ACS Global and
Anthony Dudzinski, one of our directors and our Chief Operating Officer, Treasurer and Secretary was a director, president and
secretary of ACS Global.  In addition, at the time of the acquisition, Mr. Arnone owned 13,250,000 shares of common stock of ACS
Global and had the right to receive an additional 12,000,000 such shares upon the conversion of Series C Preferred Stock of ACS
Global owned by him and Mr. Dudzinski owned 1,020,000 shares of ACS Global common stock and had the right to receive an
additional 12,000,000 such shares upon the conversion of ACS Global preferred stock owned by him.  As a result, assuming the
conversion of such preferred stock, Mr. Arnone and Mr. Dudzinski would have been deemed to be the beneficial owners of 45.7%
and 24.5% of the common stock of ACS Global, respectively.  Further, Mr. Arnone and Mr. Dudzinski, as control persons of ACS
Global may be deemed to beneficially own the 21,000,000 shares of our Common Stock issued to ACS Global in the
acquisition.  Each of Mr. Arnone and Mr. Dudzinski disclaim such beneficial ownership.

The amount of debt that we assumed in the acquisition was $68,575, of which as of September 30, 2011, $68,575 remained
outstanding.  The interest rate on such debt is 6% per annum.

Mr. Arnone remains a director, and secretary of ACS Global and Mr. Dudzinski remains as a director and president and treasurer of
ACS Global.
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Director Independence
Using the definition of “independent” set forth in the rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market, we have determined that neither John Arnone
or Anthony Dudzinski are independent.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

AUDIT FEES
The aggregate fees billed by Malcolm Pollard, Inc. CPA PC for professional services rendered for the audit of our annual financial
statements for fiscal year ended September 30, 2010 were $6,000.

AUDIT-RELATED FEES
There were no other fees billed by Larry O’Donnell CPA PC or Malcolm Pollard, Inc. CPA PC for professional services rendered,
other than as stated under the captions Audit Fees.

TAX FEES
There were no other fees billed by Larry O’Donnell CPA PC or Malcolm Pollard, Inc. CPA PC for professional services rendered,
other than as stated under the captions Audit Fees.

ALL OTHER FEES
There were no other fees billed by Larry O’Donnell CPA PC or Malcolm Pollard, Inc. CPA PC for professional services rendered,
other than as stated under the captions Audit Fees, Audit-Related Fees, and Tax Fees.

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) (1) Financial Statements.

The financial statements listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing on page F-1 of this Form 10-K are filed
as a part of this report.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

There are no financial statement schedules included in this annual report.
 
 

23

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

(3) The exhibits listed below are filed as part of this annual report.
 
Number  Exhibit
2.1  Asset Purchase and Redemption Agreement, dated April 20, 2011 by and among R&A Productions, Inc.,
  American CryoStem Corporation, American CryoStem Acquisition Corporation and Hector Medina (Nonmaterial

schedules and exhibits identified in the Asset Purchase and Redemption Agreement have been omitted pursuant
to Item 601b.2 of Regulation S-K. The registrant agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any omitted schedule
or exhibit to the Commission upon request.)

3.1(a)  Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (1)
3.1(b)  Amendment to Articles of Incorporation (2)
3.2  Amended and Restated By-laws (2)
4.1  Stock Specimen (3)
10.1  American CryoStem Corporation Incentive Stock Option Plan*
10.2  Annual Bonus Performance Plan for Executive Officers*
31.1  Certification pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2  Certification pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1  Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
   
101.INS  XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document
 
(1) Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s current report on Form 8-K filed on June 15, 2011
(2) Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s current report on Form 8-K filed on April 27, 2011
(3) Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s registration statement on Form S-1 filed on February 16, 2010
* Indicates a management contract of compensatory plan of arrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

DATE: January 12, 2012 American CryoStem Corporation.  
          (Registrant)  
    
 By: /s/ John S Arnone  
 John S Arnone

President, CEO and Director
 

In accordance with the Securities Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

January 12, 2012 /s/ John S. Arnone
 John S. Arnone, President, CEO and Chairman of the Board (principal executive

officer, principal financial and accounting officer)
  
January 12, 2012 /s/ Anthony Dudzinski
 Anthony Dudzinski, COO, Treasurer, Secretary and Director
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Exhibit 2.1

ASSET PURCHASE AND REDEMPTION AGREEMENT

Dated as of April 19, 2011
 

by and among
 

R & A PRODUCTIONS, INC.,

AMERICAN CRYOSTEM CORPORATION,

AMERICAN CRYOSTEM ACQUISITION CORP.

and
 

THE PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDER
 

of
 

R & A PRODUCTIONS, INC.
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ASSET PURCHASE AND REDEMPTION AGREEMENT

 
THIS ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made as of the 19th day of April 2011, by and among R & A
Productions, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Parent”), American CryoStem Acquisition Corp., a Nevada corporation and wholly
owned subsidiary of the Parent (the “Purchaser” and with the Parent, the “Parent Parties”), American CryoStem Corporation, a
Nevada corporation (the “Seller”) and Hector Medina, an individual and a shareholder of Parent (the “Principal Shareholder”).

W I T N E S S E T H

WHEREAS, the Parent files periodic reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) pursuant to Section
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and its shares of common stock, par value $0.001
per share (the “Common Stock”), are eligible for quotation under the symbol “RAPP” on the OTC QB™ operated by the Pink OTC
Markets (the “OTC QB”).

WHEREAS, the Purchaser is newly formed and wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent formed to, among other related activities,
effectuate the Acquisition (as hereinafter defined).

WHEREAS, the Seller is a development stage non-reporting entity whose common stock is eligible for quotation on the “OTC Pink
Sheets No Information” operated by the Pink OTC Markets and has developed and markets a proprietary core processing platform
for Adipose (fat) Derived Adult Stem Cells for collecting, processing, and long term storage of adult stem cells.

WHEREAS, Purchaser intends to buy the Purchased Assets and assume the Assumed Liabilities (each as hereinafter defined) and
Seller intends to sell, assign and transfer the same to Purchaser, for 21,000,000 shares of Common Stock upon the terms and
conditions of this Agreement (the “Purchase Shares”).

WHEREAS, the purchase of the Purchased Assets and the assumption of the Assumed Liabilities (collectively, the “Acquisition”)
shall close simultaneously with the closing of an offering to be conducted by the Parent (the “Offering”) of shares of Common Stock
(the “Offered Shares” and with the Purchase Shares, the “Issuable Shares”) to be offered in units (the “Unit”), where each such Unit
shall consist of 100,000 Offered Shares, in a minimum amount of $500,000 (the “Minimum Amount”) and a maximum amount of
$5,000,000 (the “Maximum Amount”) pursuant to a subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) executed by and
between the Parent and each of the subscribers in the Offering (the “Subscribers”).

WHEREAS, on or prior to the Closing Date, the Parent shall redeem (the “Redemption”) 3,170,000 shares of Common Stock from
the Principal Shareholder (the “Redemption Shares”), for a redemption price of $350,000 (the “Redemption Price”), which
Redemption Price is payable from the net proceeds of the Offering contemporaneously with the closing thereof;

WHEREAS, as conditions to the closing of the Acquisition: (i) the Parent shall have closed upon no less than the Minimum Amount in
the Offering; (ii) the two (2) executive officers and directors of the Seller shall become the executive officers and directors of the
Parent (together with any other persons appointed by such two (2) persons as executive directors and/or directors of the Parent), and
(iii) the Parent shall have effectuated the Redemption.

WHEREAS, following the closing of the Acquisition, the Redemption and the Offering and the other Transactions, and assuming the
sale of the Maximum Amount, (a) there will be 33,845,862 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding, of which (i) the Seller
shall own the 21,000,000 Purchase Shares, which collectively shall constitute approximately 62% of the issued and outstanding
shares of Common Stock, on a fully-diluted basis, (ii) the shareholders of the Parent prior to the Transactions (the “Present
Shareholders”) shall own all of the 2,845,862 issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock, which shares shall constitute
approximately 8.4% of the issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock, on a fully-diluted basis, and (iii) the Subscribers shall
own the 10,000,000 Offered Shares, which shares shall constitute approximately 29.6% of the issued and outstanding shares of
Common Stock, on a fully-diluted basis, (b) there will be no options, warrants and/or other securities issued and outstanding, (c) the
Purchaser shall own substantially all of the assets and liabilities of the Seller, and (d) the two (2) executive officers and directors shall
become the executive officers and directors of the Parent (in addition to any other executive officers and directors appointed by such
two (2) persons).
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NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual agreements, representations, warranties and covenants herein
contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the value, receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the Parties
hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

Definitions.  When used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below (such meanings being
equally applicable to both the singular and plural form of the terms defined):

“Affiliate“ means, with respect to any person, any other person controlling, controlled by or under common control with such
person.  The term “Control” as used in the preceding sentence means, with respect to a corporation, the right to exercise, directly or
indirectly, more than 10% of the voting rights attributable to the shares of the controlled corporation and, with respect to any person
other than a corporation, the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management or
policies of such person.

“Assignment” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.

“Assumed Liabilities” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.5.

“Assumption” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.5.

“Business Day” means any day other than Saturday, Sunday and any day on which banking institutions in the United States are
authorized by law or other governmental action to close.

“Closing” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.1.

“Closing Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.1.

“Commission” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Contracts” means any and all contracts, agreements, commitment, franchises, understandings, arrangements, leases, licenses,
registrations, authorizations, easements, servitudes, rights of way, mortgages, bonds, notes, guaranties, Encumbrances, evidence of
indebtedness, approvals or other instruments or undertakings to which such person is a party or to which or by which such person or
the property of such person is subject or bound, whether written or oral and whether or not entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of the Person’s business, excluding any Permits.

“Damages” means any and all damages, liabilities, obligations, penalties, fines, judgments, claims, deficiencies, losses, costs,
expenses and assessments (including without limitation income and other taxes, interest, penalties and attorneys’ and accountants’
fees and disbursements).

“Encumbrances” means any and all claims, liabilities and obligations and free and clear of any and all liens, pledges, charges,
mortgages, security interests, restrictions, leases, licenses, easements, liabilities, claims, encumbrances, preferences, priorities or
rights of others of every kind and description.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any similar federal statute, and the rules and
regulations of the Commission thereunder, all as the same shall be in effect at the time.

“FINRA” means the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority.

“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles set forth in the opinions and pronouncements of the Accounting Principles
Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and statements and pronouncements of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board which are applicable to the circumstances as of the date of determination.
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“Governmental Authority” means any nation or country (including but not limited to the United States) and any commonwealth,
territory or possession thereof and any government or governmental or regulatory, legislative, executive authority thereof, or
commission, department or political subdivision thereof, whether federal, state, regional, municipal, local or foreign, or any
department, board, bureau, agency, instrumentality or authority thereof, or any court or arbitrator (public or private), including, but not
limited to, the Commission and FINRA.

“Intellectual Property Right” means any patent, patent right, trademark, trademark right, trade name, trade name right, service
mark, service mark right, copyright and other proprietary intellectual property right and computer program.

“Knowledge” means with respect to any Person, (x) such Person is actually aware of such fact or matter or (y) such Person should
reasonably have been expected to discover or otherwise become aware of such fact or matter after reasonable investigation, and for
purposes hereof it shall be assumed that such Person has conducted a reasonable investigation of the accuracy of the
representations and warranties set forth herein.

“Legal Requirements” means any and all laws (statutory, judicial or otherwise), ordinances, regulations, judgments, orders,
directives, injunctions, writs, decrees or awards of, and any Contracts with, any Governmental Authority, in each case as and to the
extent applicable to such person or such person’s business, operations or Properties.

“Liability” means any liability, obligation or indebtedness of whatever kind or nature (whether known or unknown, whether asserted
or unasserted, whether absolute or contingent, whether accrued or unaccrued, whether liquidated or unliquidated, and whether due
or to become due), including any liability for Taxes.

“Loss” or “Losses” means any and all Liability, damages, fines, fees, penalties and expenses whether or not arising out of litigation,
including without limitation, interest, reasonable expenses of investigation, court costs, reasonable out-of-pocket fees and expenses
of attorneys, accountants and other experts or other reasonable out-of-pocket expenses of litigation or other legal proceedings,
incurred in connection with the rightful enforcement of rights under this Agreement against any Party hereto, and whether or not
arising out of third party claims against an Indemnified Party.

“Material Adverse Effect” means any change, event, development, or effect that is materially adverse to the business,  Liabilities,
Properties, results of operations,  condition (financial or otherwise) or working capital of the Parent Parties or the Seller, as the case
may be, or the ability of any Party to consummate on a timely basis the Transactions; provided, however, that none of the following
shall be deemed to constitute, and none of the following shall be taken into account in determining whether there has been, a
Material Adverse Effect: (a) any adverse change, event, development, or effect arising from or relating to the taking of any action
contemplated by this Agreement and the other Transactions Documents, and (b) any adverse change in or effect on the business of
the Parent Parties or the Seller, as the case may be, that is cured by such Party before the Closing Date.

“Order” means any order, injunction, judgment, decree, ruling, writ, assessment or arbitration award (in each such case whether
preliminary or final).

“Parent Control Person” means each director, executive officer, promoter, and such other Persons as may be deemed in control of
the Parent Parties as defined by Rule 405 under the Securities Act.

“Parent Disclosure Schedule” means the disclosure schedules delivered by the Parent to the Seller concurrently herewith.

“Party” means the Seller, the Parent, the Purchaser and the Principal Shareholder, individually.

“Parties” means the Seller, the Parent Parties and the Principal Shareholder, collectively.
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“Permits” means any and all permits, rights, approvals, licenses, authorizations, legal status, orders or Contracts under any Legal
Requirement or otherwise granted by any Governmental Authority.

“Permitted Encumbrances” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.4.

“Person” means any individual, partnership, joint venture, firm, corporation, association, limited liability company, trust or other
enterprise or any governmental or political subdivision or any agency, department or instrumentality thereof.

“Principal Exchange” means the OTC QX or the OTC QB (each as operated by the OTC Pink Sheets), the OTC BB, NASDAQ, the
NYSE and AMEX.

“Properties” means any and all properties and assets (real, personal or mixed, tangible or intangible) owned or used by the Seller,
the Parent Parties, the Principal Shareholder and/or a Parent Control Person.

“Purchase Right” with respect to any Person means any security, right, subscription, warrant, option or other Contract that gives the
right to purchase or otherwise receive or be issued any shares of capital stock or other equity interests of such Person or any security
of any kind convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for any shares of capital stock or other equity interests of such Person.

“Purchased Assets” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.

“Records” means all originals and copies of agreements, instruments, documents, deeds, books, records, files, corporate franchises,
stock record books, corporate books containing the minutes of meetings of directors and shareholders and any and all other data and
information within the possession of a Party or any Affiliate thereof.

“Sale” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.

“SEC Reports” means all reports required to be filed with the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act and the Exchange Act.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any similar federal statute, and the rules and regulations of the
Commission thereunder, all as the same shall be in effect at the time.

“Seller Disclosure Schedule” means the disclosure schedules delivered by the Seller to the Parent concurrently herewith.

“SIPC” means the Securities Investor Protection Corporation.

“Subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person, any corporation, limited liability company, partnership, association, or other
business entity of which (i) if a corporation, a majority of the total voting power of shares of stock entitled (without regard to the
occurrence of any contingency) to vote in the election of directors, managers, or trustees thereof is at the time owned or controlled,
directly or indirectly, by that Person or one or more of the other Subsidiaries of that Person or a combination thereof or (ii) if a limited
liability company, partnership, association, or other business entity (other than a corporation), a majority of the partnership or other
similar ownership interests thereof is at the time owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by that Person or one or more Subsidiaries
of that Person or a combination thereof and for this purpose, a Person or Persons own a majority ownership interest in such a
business entity (other than a corporation) if such Person or Persons shall be allocated a majority of such business entity’s gains or
losses or shall be or control any managing director or general partner of such business entity (other than a corporation). The term
“Subsidiary” shall include all Subsidiaries of such Subsidiary.

“Tax” means any and all taxes, charges, fees, levies or other assessments, including, without limitation, local and/or foreign income,
net worth, gross receipts, license, payroll, employment, excise, severance, stamp, occupation, premium, windfall profits,
environmental, customs duties, share capital, franchise, profits, withholding, social security (or similar), unemployment, disability, real
property, personal property, sales, use, service, service use, transfer, registration, recording, ad-valorem, value-added, alternative or
add-on minimum, estimated, or other taxes, assessments or charges of any kind whatsoever, including any interest, penalty, or
addition thereto, whether disputed or not.
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“Tax Return” means any federal, state, local and foreign tax return, report or similar statement required to be filed with respect to any
Tax (including any attached schedules), including, without limitation, any information return, claim for refund, amended return or
declaration of estimated Tax.

“Termination Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.1.

“Transaction Documents” means this Agreement, the Subscription Agreement and all other agreements, documents, instruments or
certificates delivered in connection with this Agreement.

“Transactions” means the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (including, but not limited to, the Acquisition, the Offering
and the Redemption) and the other Transaction Documents.

“Transfer” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.

Recitals.  The above WHEREAS clauses are hereby incorporated by reference into this Agreement as if fully stated herein.

Construction and Interpretation.  Unless the context of this Agreement otherwise requires, (i) words of any gender include the
other gender; (ii) words using the singular or plural number also include the plural or singular number, respectively; (iii) the terms
“hereof,” “herein,” “hereby” and derivative or similar words refer to this entire Agreement; (iv) the terms “Article” or “Section” refer to
the specified Article or Section of this Agreement; and (v) the word “including” does not imply any limitation to the item or matter
mentioned.

ARTICLE II
PURCHASED ASSETS AND ASSUMED LIABILITIES

2.1          Purchased Assets. Subject to and upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Seller shall sell, transfer, convey,
assign, grant and deliver (collectively, the “Sale” and with the Assumption, as hereinafter defined, the “Transfer”) to Purchaser, and
Purchaser shall acquire, and except as otherwise indicated in this Section 2.1, at the Closing (as hereinafter defined), subject to the
Permitted Encumbrances (as hereinafter defined), all right, title and interest in and to all business, Properties, equipment, furniture,
fixtures, licenses, goodwill and rights of Seller as a going concern, of every kind, nature and description, tangible and intangible,
owned or leased, or mixed, wherever located and whether or not carried or reflected on the Records of Seller, including all
Properties,  franchises, rights described in the Bill of Sale, Assignment and Assumption Agreement annexed as Exhibit A hereto (the
“Assignment”), and all of the other assets of Seller but excluding the Excluded Assets (as hereinafter defined), as the same shall
exist on the Closing Date (as such term is defined in Section 5.1), forming a part of or used in connection with any of Seller’s
business.  All of the foregoing (other than the Excluded Assets) are herein collectively referred to as the “Purchased Assets.”  The
Purchased Assets also include, without limitation, all, or where expressly indicated below in this Section 2.1, all right and title and
interest of Seller in and to all, of the following:

(a)           Seller’s customer accounts described in Schedule 2.1(a) of the Seller Disclosure Schedule to this Agreement (the
“Acquired Customer Accounts”);

(b)           All books and records, and other information, relating to the Acquired Customer Accounts and any other customer accounts
(“Other Accounts”) ever serviced by the Seller to the extent that such information regarding Other Accounts is in Seller’s
possession;

(c)           All Contracts to which the Seller is a Party or by which it is bound, each as listed on Schedule 2.1(c) and described in
Schedule 6.10 of the Seller Disclosure Schedule;

(d)           All Records;
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(e)           All trademarks, service marks, logos, trade names, slogans, corporate names, Internet domain names, websites and rights
in telephone numbers, email and other addresses, together with all translations, adaptations, derivations and combinations thereof
and including all goodwill associated therewith, and all applications, registrations, and renewals in connection therewith;

(f)           All computer software, including source code, executable code, data, databases, and related documentation;

(g)          All advertising and promotional materials;

(h)          The permits and licenses listed in Schedule 6.4 of the Seller Disclosure Schedule;

(i)           All cash and cash-equivalents; and

(j)           Such other Properties of Seller listed on Schedule 2.1(j) of the Seller Disclosure Schedule.

2.2          Excluded Assets. The Sale under this Agreement shall not include any rights, claims and things or other Properties not
specifically included in the Purchased Assets (collectively, the “Excluded Assets).  All such Excluded Assets are listed on Schedule
2.2 of the Seller Disclosure Schedule.

2.3          Instruments of Transfer. The Transfer to Purchaser of each of the Purchased Assets as herein provided shall be effected
by the Assignment and any other bills of sale, licenses, endorsements, assignments, certificates of title, and/or other good and
sufficient instruments of transfer and conveyance, satisfactory in form and substance to the Seller and as shall be effective to vest in
Purchaser title to each and all such Purchased Asset(s) as required by this Agreement.

2.4          Title to Purchased Assets. Seller shall Transfer to Purchaser good and marketable title to all of the Purchased Assets,
free and clear of any and all Encumbrances, except for those encumbrances or limitations expressly identified on Schedule 2.4 of the
Seller Disclosure Schedule (the “Permitted Encumbrances”).

2.5          Assumed Liabilities. Except as may otherwise expressly be provided hereunder, Purchaser shall, at the Closing, execute
and deliver to Seller the fully executed Assignment pursuant to which, among other things, Purchaser shall assume and agree to pay
and perform (the “Assumption”), as the same shall become due in accordance with their respective terms, the liabilities of Seller set
forth on Schedule 2.5 hereto, in each case only to the extent that such obligation is legally enforceable and also shall not have been
paid, performed or discharged prior to the Closing (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Assumed Liabilities”).

2.6          Excluded Liabilities. Except as expressly provided on Schedule 2.6 hereto, Purchaser shall not and does not assume any
Liability or obligation of Seller, fixed or contingent, disclosed or undisclosed, and does not and shall not assume any Liability for any
claim, debt, default, duty, obligation or Liability of Seller of any kind or nature, whether known or unknown, contingent or fixed, all of
which, to the extent that they exist on and after the Closing, shall be retained by Seller.  All of the foregoing are collectively referred to
as the “Excluded Liabilities.”

2.7          Consent to Assignment.  Except as may otherwise be provided hereunder, Seller shall, at the Closing, execute and deliver
to Purchaser, and cause each party with which the Seller has entered into a Contract that remains in full force and effect to execute
and deliver to Purchaser, an assignment and consent to assignment agreement in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit B (the
“Consent to Assignment”).  All such Consent(s) to Assignment are listed on Schedule 2.7.
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ARTICLE III
PURCHASE PRICE; SALES AND TRANSFER TAXES

3.1          Consideration.

(a)           Purchase Price.  The purchase price for the Purchased Assets to be acquired pursuant to Section 2.1 shall, in addition to
the assumption of liabilities pursuant to Section 2.5, be the Purchase Shares.

(b )           Issuance of Purchase Shares.  The purchase price shall be issued in full at the initial Closing (as defined in Section 5.1) as
set forth in such Section 5.1.

3.2          Sales and Transfer Taxes. Purchaser shall pay all sales and other transfer taxes arising out of the Transfer of the
Purchased Assets to Purchaser.

ARTICLE IV
REDEMPTION OF REDEMPTION SHARES

4.1          Redemption of Redemption Shares.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, on the Closing Date, the
Parent shall pursuant to the Redemption redeem the Redemption Shares from the Principal Shareholder and the Principal
Shareholder shall sell, assign, transfer, convey, and deliver to the Escrow Agent on behalf of the Seller the Redemption Shares. The
Principal Shareholder shall deliver the originally issued certificate or certificates evidencing the Redemption Shares at the Closing
free and clear of all Encumbrances and accompanied by duly executed stock powers or similar documents of transfer (endorsed in
blank) and with any necessary stock transfer tax stamps affixed thereto.

4.2          Redemption Price.  Subject to and upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Parent shall cause to be paid to
the Principal Shareholder, in full payment for the Redemption Shares and in reliance upon the representations and warranties made
herein by the Principal Shareholder, the Redemption Price.

4.3          Method of Payment of Redemption Price.  Prior to, and as a condition of, the Closing, the Subscribers shall have
deposited no less than the Minimum Amount in a non-interest bearing escrow account with Gusrae, Kaplan, Bruno & Nusbaum, PLLC
as escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”), pursuant to the terms of an escrow agreement by and between the Seller and the Escrow
Agent (the “Escrow Agreement”).  Subject to the satisfaction of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Subscription
Agreement and the other Transaction Documents, and in accordance with the Escrow Agreement, on the date of the initial closing of
the Offering, the Escrow Agent shall, among other things, deliver to the Principal Shareholder the Redemption Price and the Principal
Shareholder shall deliver the Redemption Shares.

ARTICLE V
THE CLOSING; CLOSING DELIVERIES

5.1          Closing; Closing Date; and Effective Time. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the closing of the
Transactions (the “Closing”) will occur on or before the date that is ten (10) days after all of the conditions for Closing described in
this Agreement have been waived or satisfied; provided, however, that if such conditions have not been satisfied or waived prior to
June 8, 2011 (the “Termination Date”), and the Parties have not mutually agreed to extend such date in writing, then this Agreement
shall be terminated as provided in Section 12.1(b). Such date of Closing, including any extensions mutually agreed to by the Parties,
is hereafter referred to as the “Closing Date.”

5.2          Actions to Be Taken at the Closing. At the Closing, the Parties will take all of the following actions and deliver all of the
following (collectively, the “Closing Deliveries”):

(a)           Seller will deliver or cause to be delivered to the Parent Parties the following:

(i)           The Assignment executed by Seller;
 
 

7

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

(ii)          The Consent(s) to Assignment;

(iii)         All other documents, materials, instruments, papers, items and Property required by the terms of this Agreement to be
delivered to Purchaser to Transfer and vest in Purchaser good and marketable title in and to the Purchased Assets free and clear of
all Encumbrances except for the Permitted Encumbrances applicable thereto.

(b)           The Parent Parties will deliver the following to, unless otherwise specified, the Seller:
 
(i)           The certificate(s) to be issued by Parent representing the Purchase Shares;

(ii)          The Assignment executed by Purchaser;

(iii)         The Principal Shareholder will deliver certificate(s) representing the Redemption Shares to the Escrow Agent on behalf of
the Seller;

(iv)         An officer’s certificate in the form of Exhibit C annexed hereto executed by the Parent (the “Officer’s Certificate”);

(v)          A secretary’s certificate in the form of Exhibit D annexed hereto executed by the Parent (the “Secretary’s Certificate”),
including evidence of all requisite corporate approval obtained by the Parent for this Agreement and the other Transaction
Documents, including but not limited to the approval hereof and thereof by the board of directors of the Parent;

(vi)         A Release in the form attached hereto (the “Release”) executed by the Principal Shareholder in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit E.

(vii)        The resignations of all the officers and directors of the Parent;

(viii)       All Bank Accounts (as hereinafter defined);

(ix)         Evidence satisfactory to Seller that the designees of the Seller, the names of whom have heretofore furnished by the Seller to
the Parent, shall be the only authorized signatories with respect to all of Parent’s and Purchaser’s accounts, credit lines, safe deposit
boxes or vaults and credit or charge cards set forth or required to be set forth in Schedule 7.34 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule (the
“Bank Accounts”);

(x)          All Records, including, but not limited to, the stock book, stock ledger, minute books and corporate seal of each of the
Parent  Parties;

(xi)         The Lease Assignment;

(xii)        All correspondence with the Commission;

(xiii)       All correspondence with FINRA;

(xiv)       Letters from the Principal Shareholder and each of the other officers and directors of the Parent addressed to the Seller
stating, among other things, that all SEC Reports were true and accurate when filed with the Commission (the “10b-5 Letters”) in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit F;

(xv)        Certificates issued by the Secretary of State of Nevada to the effect that the Parent is in good standing with respect to the
payment of franchise, sales and use taxes in the State of Nevada;

(xvi)       A stock certificate of the Purchaser showing that the Purchaser is wholly owned by the Parent;

(xvii)      All Tax Returns; and
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(xviii)      All blue sky filings made by the Parent since its inception.

(c)           Seller, on the one hand, and the Parent, the Purchaser and the Principal Shareholder, on the other hand, shall take such
other actions and shall execute and deliver such other instruments, documents and certificates as are required by the terms of this
Agreement or as may reasonably be requested by the other Party or Parties in connection with the consummation of the Transfer and
the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

ARTICLE VI
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE SELLER

The Seller hereby represents and warrants to the Parent as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date that:

6.1          Corporate Organization.  The Seller is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of
the State of Nevada, and has full corporate power and authority to carry on its business as it is now being conducted and to own the
Properties it now owns.

6.2          Authority.  The Seller has the corporate power and the authority to execute, deliver and perform this Agreement and each
other Transaction Document to which it is a Party and to carry out the Transactions. The execution, delivery and performance of this
Agreement and the Seller Documents by the Seller have been duly authorized by its board of directors and its shareholders. No other
corporate proceedings on the part of the Seller are necessary to authorize the execution, delivery and performance of this
Agreement, the Transaction Documents to which it is a Party and the performance of the Transactions .

6.3          Title and Condition.  The Purchased Assets are owned solely by Seller, and Seller has good, assignable and marketable
title to the Purchased Assets.  At the Closing, Purchaser shall receive from Seller good, assignable and marketable title to the
Purchased Assets, free and clear of any and all Encumbrances other than the Permitted Encumbrances.

6.4          Consents; Consents to Assignment; Permits.  All Consents to Assignment are described in Schedule 6.4 of the Seller
Disclosure Schedule.  Except as set forth in Schedule 6.4 of the Seller Disclosure Schedule, no notification to and no authorization,
consent, approval, license, permit, registration, declaration, filing or order of any Governmental Authority, including, but not limited to,
the Food and Drug Administration (the “FDA”) is required by or with respect to, the Seller in connection with the execution, delivery
and performance of this Agreement and the Transaction Documents to which it is a Party.  The Seller has all Permits required in
connection with the operation of its business as presently conducted, except for those that the absence of which do not affect and will
not affect, materially and adversely, the business, financial condition or the results of operations of the Seller.  All such Permits are
listed on Schedule 6.4 of the Seller Disclosure Schedule. Except as set forth in Schedule 6.4 of the Seller Disclosure Schedule, no
notice has been issued and no investigation, inquiry or review is pending or, to Seller’s Knowledge, threatened by any Governmental
Authority with respect to (i) any alleged violation by the Seller of any Legal Requirement, or (ii) any alleged failure to have all permits,
certificates, licenses, approvals and other authorizations required in connection with the operation of the business of the Seller.

6.5          Non-contravention. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Transaction Documents to which it
is a Party by the Seller and the performance of this Agreement by the Seller do not and will not (i) result in a breach of, or constitute a
default under Seller’s Charter Documents, (ii) result in a breach of, or constitute a default under, any Contract, including, but not
limited to, any loan agreement, indenture or mortgage or any material lease, agreement, franchise, license, permit or other
undertaking to which the Seller is a Party or to which the Seller or any of its Properties may be subject or bound, (iii) result in a
violation of any order, writ, injunction, decree or award of any court or Governmental Authority to the Seller or any of its Properties
may be subject or bound, or (iv) result in a violation of any federal or state law, statute, ordinance, rule or regulation applicable to the
Seller.
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6.6          Financial Statements. The Seller has delivered to the Parent true and complete copies of its audited balance sheets as of,
and the statements of results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 (the “Audited Financial Statements”)
and its unaudited balance sheet as of September 30, 2010 and the related statements of operations, cash flows and changes in
shareholders’ equity of Seller for the period ending on such date (collectively, the “Unaudited Financial Statements” and together
with the Audited Financial Statements, the “Financial Statements”).  The balance sheet as of September 30, 2010 is referred to
herein as the “Most Recent Balance Sheet.” To the best of Seller’s Knowledge, the Financial Statements are true and correct in all
material respects and present fairly the financial position of the Seller as of the respective dates indicated and the results of
operations for the respective periods indicated, having been prepared in conformity with GAAP (as hereinafter defined) applied on a
consistent basis.

6.7          Absence of Certain Changes or Events. Since the date of the Most Recent Balance Sheet there has not been (i) any
change (other than changes involving prospective changes in the general economic environment in which the Seller operates), which
has affected, or may reasonably be expected to affect materially and adversely the Purchased Assets; or (ii) any damage, destruction
or other casualty loss with respect to the Purchased Assets.

6.8          Assumed Liabilities.  Schedule 6.8 of the Seller Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true, correct and complete list of all
Assumed Liabilities as of April 15, 2011, including, without limitation, its secured creditors and other creditors having liens on any of
the Purchased Assets.

6.9          Absence of Undisclosed Liabilities and Agreements.  Except as reflected in the Audited Financial Statements or as set
forth in Schedule 6.9 of the Seller Disclosure Schedule, or otherwise contemplated by this Agreement, the Seller has neither (i)
incurred any debts, liabilities or obligations, whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise and whether due or to become due,
which are material to the Purchased Assets; nor (ii) become a party to any agreement (other than agreements made in the ordinary
and usual course of its business) which affects or may affect materially and adversely the Purchased Assets.

6.10        Contracts. Schedule 6.10 of the Seller Disclosure Schedule contains an accurate and complete list and terms of all the
Seller’s Contracts.  Except as disclosed in Schedule 6.10 of the Seller Disclosure Schedule, there are no defaults and the Seller has
no Knowledge of any reason why any default will occur hereafter, whether as a result of the consummation of the Transfer, the other
the Transactions or otherwise, of any obligation to be performed by any party to a Contract to which the Seller is a party or by which it
is bound.
 

ARTICLE VII
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF

THE PARENT AND THE PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDER

Each of the Parent and the Principal Shareholder hereby jointly and severally represents and warrants to the Seller as of the date
hereof and as of the Closing Date that:

7.1          Corporate Organization.  Each of the Parent and the Purchaser; (i) is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in
good standing under the laws of the State of Nevada, and has full corporate power and authority to carry on its business as it is now
being conducted and to own the Properties it now owns, all of which Properties are listed on Schedule 7.1 of the Parent Disclosure
Schedule, and (ii) is duly qualified or licensed to do business as a foreign corporation in good standing in such other states in which it
does business, except where such failure to be so qualified or licensed does not have a material adverse effect on the Parent’s
business; the Parent is duly and properly registered pursuant to applicable state laws and regulations in all states where the conduct
of the Parent’s business as presently conducted requires such registration. The copies of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws
(the “Parent Charter Documents”) of the Parent annexed hereto as Schedule 7.1 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule are complete
and correct copies of such instruments as presently in effect.
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7.2          Authority.  Each of the Parent and the Purchaser has the corporate power and the authority to execute, deliver and perform
this Agreement and each other Transaction Document and to carry out the Transactions. The execution, delivery and performance of
this Agreement and the Transaction Documents by each of the Parent Parties have been duly authorized by its board of directors and
its shareholders. No other corporate proceedings on the part of either of the Parent Parties are necessary to authorize the execution,
delivery and performance of this Agreement, the Transaction Documents and the performance of the Transactions.   The Principal
Shareholder has full authority, legal capacity and competence to execute, deliver and perform this Agreement and the Transaction
Documents and to perform the Transactions.  This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Principal Shareholder,
the Parent and the Purchaser and, assuming due execution and delivery hereof by the Seller, is a valid and legally binding agreement
of each of the Principal Shareholder, Parent and the Purchaser, enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy,
insolvency, moratorium, reorganization and similar laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors’ rights, to general
equity principles, and public policy considerations underlying the securities laws, to the extent that such public policy considerations
limit the enforceability of the provisions of this Agreement that purport to provide indemnification for securities laws liabilities.

7.3          Capitalization.  As of the date hereof, the authorized capital stock of the Parent consists of (i) 75,000,000 shares of
Common Stock and (ii) 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock.  As of the date hereof (i) 6,015,862 shares of Common Stock are issued
and outstanding and, after giving effect to the Redemption of the 3,170,000 Redemption Shares, there will be 2,845,862 shares of
Common Stock issued and outstanding on the Closing Date, all of which shares of Common Stock will be held by Present
Shareholders, and (ii) no shares of Common Stock are held by the Parent in its treasury.  After giving effect to the Redemption and
the issuance of the Purchase Shares to the Seller in the Acquisition and of the Offered Shares (with the Purchase Shares, the
“Issuable Shares”) to the Subscribers (assuming the sale therein of the Maximum Amount), the Parent will have 33,845,862 shares
of Common Stock issued and outstanding, of which (i) the 21,000,000 Purchase Shares will be owned by the Seller, which shares will
constitute approximately 62% of the issued and outstanding Common Stock, (ii) the 10,000,000 Offered Shares will be owned by the
Subscribers, which shares will constitute approximately 29.6% of the issued and outstanding Common Stock, and (iii) 2,845,862
shares of Common Stock will be owned by the Present Shareholders, which shares will constitute approximately 8.4% of the issued
and outstanding Common Stock, where each such figure is calculated on a fully diluted basis.

Other than as set forth above, no shares of capital stock or other voting or non-voting securities of the Parent are issued,
reserved for issuance or outstanding. All outstanding shares of the capital stock of the Parent are duly authorized, validly issued, fully
paid and nonassessable and not subject to or issued in violation of any Purchase Right, right of first refusal, preemptive right,
subscription right or any similar right under any provision of the applicable corporate laws of the State of Nevada, the Parent Charter
Documents, or any Contract to which the Parent is a party or otherwise bound. Except as contemplated by this Agreement, there are
no oral and/or written, direct and/or indirect options, warrants, rights, convertible or exchangeable securities, “phantom” stock rights,
stock appreciation rights, stock-based performance units, commitments, Contracts, arrangements or undertakings of any kind to
which the Parent is a party or by which it is bound; (a) obligating the Parent to issue, deliver or sell, or cause to be issued, delivered
or sold, additional shares of capital stock or other equity interests in, or any security convertible or exercisable for or exchangeable
into any capital stock of or other equity interest in, the Parent, (b) obligating the Parent to issue, grant, extend or enter into any such
option, warrant, call, right, security, commitment, Contract, arrangement or undertaking or (c) that give any Person the right to receive
any economic benefit or right similar to or derived from the economic benefits and rights occurring to holders of the capital stock of
the Parent. As of the date of this Agreement but excepting the Transactions, there are no outstanding contractual obligations of the
Parent to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any shares of capital stock of the Parent. To the Parent’s Knowledge, the offer
and sale of all capital stock, convertible securities, rights, warrants, or options of the Parent issued prior to the Closing complied with
all applicable federal and state securities laws and the Parent has not been notified by the Commission, FINRA, any state securities
commission or any other Governmental Authority of the absence of compliance by the Parent with any federal and state securities
laws or other Legal Requirements.  No stockholder has a matured and/or unmatured right of rescission or claim for damages with
respect thereto.

7.4          Consents; Permits; Defaults.  No notification to and no authorization, consent, approval, license, permit, registration,
declaration, filing or order of any Governmental Authority or the Principal Exchange is required by or with respect to, the Parent
Parties or the Principal Shareholder in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and/or the
Transaction Documents and the Transactions by the Parent Parties or the Principal Shareholder. The Parent has all Permits required
in connection with the operation of its business as presently conducted, except for those that the absence of which do not affect and
will not affect, materially and adversely, the business, financial condition or the results of operations of the Parent. All such Permits
are listed on Schedule 7.4 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule.  No notice has been issued and no investigation, inquiry or review is
pending or, to Parent’s or the Principal Shareholder’s Knowledge, threatened by any Governmental Authority with respect to (i) any
alleged violation by the Parent of any law, ordinance, regulation, order, policy, guideline or any other Legal Requirement of any
Governmental Authority, or (ii) any alleged failure to have all permits, certificates, licenses, approvals and other authorizations
required in connection with the operation of the business of the Parent.  There are no defaults, and neither the Parent nor the
Principal Shareholder has any Knowledge of any reason why any default will occur hereafter, whether as a result of the
consummation of the Transfer or the other Transactions or otherwise, in any obligation to be performed by any party to a Contract to
which the Parent is a party or by which it is bound.
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7.5          Non-contravention. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Transaction Documents by each of
the Parent Parties and the Principal Shareholder and the performance of this Agreement by each of the Parent Parties and the
Principal Shareholder do not and will not (i) result in a breach of, or constitute a default under Parent Charter Documents, (ii) result in
a breach of, or constitute a default under, any loan agreement, indenture or mortgage or any material lease, agreement, franchise,
license, permit or other undertaking or Contract to which any of the Parent Parties or the Principal Shareholder is a party or to which
any of the Parent Parties or the Principal Shareholder or any of their respective Properties may be subject or bound, (iii) result in a
violation of any order, writ, injunction, decree or award of any court or Governmental Authority including, but not limited to, the
Commission, to either of the Parent Parties or the Principal Shareholder or any of their respective Properties may be subject or
bound, (iv) result in a violation of any federal or state law, statute, ordinance, rule or regulation or other Legal Requirement applicable
to any of the Parent Parties or the Principal Shareholder, or (v) result in a violation of any law, statute, ordinance, rule or regulation of
any Principal Exchange.

7.6          Financial Statements; No Liabilities.

(a)           The Parent has delivered to the Seller true and complete copies of its audited balance sheets as of, and the statements of
results of operations, cash flows and changes in shareholders’ equity for the years ended September 30, 2010 and September 30,
2009 (the “Parent Financial Statements”).  To the best of Parent’s Knowledge, the Parent Financial Statements are true and correct
in all material respects and present fairly the financial position of the Parent as of the respective dates indicated and the results of
operations for the respective periods indicated, having been prepared in conformity with GAAP (as hereinafter defined) applied on a
consistent basis.

(b)           The Parent does not have any Liabilities or obligations (whether accrued, absolute, contingent, known, unknown or
otherwise, and whether or not of a nature required to be reflected or reserved against in a balance sheet in accordance with GAAP).

7.7          Contracts.

( a )           Schedule 7.7(a) of the Parent Disclosure Schedule contains an accurate and complete list and terms of all the
Parent’s Contracts.  Other than as set forth on such otherwise set forth on Schedule 7.7(a), the Parent is not a party to or bound by
any of the following, whether written or oral:

(i)           Any Contract that cannot by its terms be terminated by the Parent with 30 days’ or less notice without penalty or
whose term continues beyond one year after the date of this Agreement;

(ii)          Any Contract or commitment for capital expenditures by the Parent in excess of $1,000 per calendar quarter in the
aggregate;

(iii)         Any lease or license with respect to any Properties, whether as landlord, tenant, licensor or licensee;

(iv)         Any Contract or other instrument relating to the borrowing of money or the guarantee of any obligation or the
deferred payment of the purchase price of any Properties;

(v)          Any Contract with any Affiliate of the Parent (including the Principal Shareholder) relating to the provision of goods
or services by or to the Parent;
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(vi)         Any Contract for the sale of any assets;

(vii)        Any Contract that purports to limit the Parent’s freedom to compete freely in any line of business or in any
geographic area;

(viii)       Any preferential purchase right, right of first refusal, or similar agreement; or

(ix)          Any other Contract that is material to the business of the Parent.

(b)           All of the Contracts listed or required to be listed in Schedule 7.7(a) of the Parent Disclosure Schedule are valid,
binding and in full force and effect, and the Parent has not been notified or advised by any party thereto of such party’s intention or
desire to terminate or modify any such Contract in any respect.  Neither the Parent nor, to the Knowledge of the Parent, any other
party is in breach of any of the terms or covenants of any Contract listed or required to be listed in Schedule 7.7(a) of the Parent
Disclosure Schedule.  Following the Closing, the Parent will continue to be entitled to all of the benefits currently held by the Parent
under each Contract listed or required to be listed in Schedule 7.7(a) of the Parent Disclosure Schedule.

(c)          The Parent is not a party to or bound by any Contract or Contracts the terms of which were arrived at by, or
otherwise reflect, less-than-arm’s-length negotiations or bargaining.

7.8          Absence of Certain Changes or Events.

(a)          Since September 30, 2010 (the “Applicable Date”), there has not been:

(i)           any event, circumstance or change that had or might have a material adverse effect on the business, operations,
prospects, Properties, financial condition or working capital of the Parent;

(ii)          any damage, destruction or loss (whether or not covered by insurance) that had or might have a material adverse
effect on the business, operations, prospects, Properties or financial condition of the Parent; or

(iii)         Any material adverse change in the Parent’s sales patterns, pricing policies, accounts receivable or accounts
payable.

(b)          Since the Applicable Date, the Parent has not:

(i)           merged into or with or consolidated with, any other corporation or acquired the business or assets of any Person;

(ii)          purchased any securities of any Person;

(iii)         created, incurred, assumed, guaranteed or otherwise become liable or obligated with respect to any Liabilities, or
made any loan or advance to, or any investment in, any person, except in each case in the ordinary course of business;

(iv)         made any change in any existing election, or made any new election, with respect to any tax law in any jurisdiction
which election could have an effect on the tax treatment of the Parent or the Seller’s business operations;

(v)          entered into, amended or terminated a Contract;

(vi)         sold, transferred, leased, mortgaged, encumbered or otherwise disposed of, or agreed to sell, transfer, lease,
mortgage, encumber or otherwise dispose of, any Properties.
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(vii)        settled any claim or litigation, or filed any motions, orders, briefs or settlement agreements in any proceeding before
any Governmental Authority or any arbitrator;

(viii)       incurred or approved, or entered into any Contract, agreement or commitment to make, any expenditures in excess
of $1,000;

(ix)          maintained its Records and/or any other books of account other than in the usual, regular and ordinary manner in
accordance with GAAP and on a basis consistent with prior periods or made any change in any of its accounting methods or
practices that would be required to be disclosed under GAAP;

(x)          granted any increase in the compensation payable or to become payable to directors, officers or employees
(including, without limitation, any such increase pursuant to any bonus, profit-sharing or other plan or commitment);

(xi)         suffered any extraordinary losses or waived any rights of material value;

(xii)         made any payment to any Affiliate or forgiven any indebtedness due or owing from any Affiliate to the Parent;

(xiii)       engaged in any one or more activities or transactions with an Affiliate or outside the ordinary course of business;

(xiv)       declared, set aside or paid any dividends, or made any distributions or other payments in respect of its equity
securities, or repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired any such securities;

(xv)        amended its Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, except for the amendment to the Articles of Incorporation having an
effective date of April 11, 2011;

(xvi)       issued any capital stock or other securities, or granted, or entered into any agreement to grant, any options,
convertible rights, other rights, warrants, calls or agreements relating to its capital stock; or

(xvii)      agreed or committed to do any of the foregoing.

7.9          Absence of Undisclosed Liabilities and Agreements.  Neither the Parent nor the Principal Shareholder has (i) incurred
any debts, Liabilities or obligations, whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise and whether due or to become due, which are
material to the Purchased Assets, or (ii) become a party to any agreement (other than agreements made in the ordinary and usual
course of its business) which affects or may affect materially and adversely the Purchased Assets.

7.10        Compliance with Laws.  The business of the Parent has been operated in compliance with all laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations and orders of all Governmental Authorities and the Principal Exchange, except where such failure would not have a
material adverse effect on the Parent or its business. The Parent has filed all reports and statements, including but not limited to the
SEC Reports, together with any amendments required to be made with respect thereto, that it was required to file with any
Governmental Authority or any other body having jurisdiction over the Parent’s operations.  Neither the Principal Shareholder nor the
Parent has received any written communication from a Governmental Authority that alleges that the Parent is not in compliance with
any federal, state, local or foreign laws, ordinances and regulations or has not made all of the filings required by all such authorities,
organizations and agencies.

7.11        Redemption.  Prior to or simultaneously with the Closing, the Parent shall redeem from the Principal Shareholder the
Redemption Shares.

7.12        Tax Matters. All Tax Returns (as hereinafter defined) required to be filed on or before the date hereof by or with respect to
the Parent have been filed, all Taxes (as hereinafter defined) shown to be due on the Tax Returns referred to in clause have been
paid in full, and there are no outstanding waivers or extensions of statutes of limitation with respect to any Taxes required to be
shown on any Tax Returns.
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7.13        Litigation.  There is no claim, action, suit or proceeding pending or, to the Knowledge of Parent or the Principal
Shareholder, threatened against any of the Parent or the Principal Shareholder or their respective Properties which, if adversely
determined, will affect or can reasonably be expected to affect materially and adversely, the Parent, or which seeks to prohibit,
restrict or delay consummation of the Transactions or any of the conditions to consummation of such transaction or to limit, in any
manner the right of the Seller to control or use the Purchased Assets after the Closing Date, nor is there any judgment, decree,
injunction, ruling or order of any court, Governmental Authority, including, but not limited to, the Commission, commission, agency or
instrumentality or arbitrator outstanding against any of the Parent or the Principal Shareholder having, or which may in the future
have, any such effect.  Neither the Parent nor the Principal Shareholder is under investigation with respect to, any violation of any
provision of any federal or state law or administrative regulation in respect of the business of the Parent.  The Parent is not a party to
or bound by any judgment, decree, injunction, ruling or order of any Governmental Authority or any other person which has affected
or may affect materially and adversely the Purchased Assets.

7.14        Title to Properties.  The Parent has good and marketable title in fee simple to all real property owned by it that is material
to the business of the Parent, and good and marketable title in all personal property owned by it that is material to the business of the
Parent, in each case free and clear of all Encumbrances.  Any real property and facilities held under lease by the Parent are held by it
under valid, subsisting, assignable with no impediment and enforceable leases of which the Parent is in compliance.  The purchase
of the Purchased Assets will not in any way affect the Parent’s title to, or lease of, such real property or to dispose of it in any way
whatsoever.

7.15        Patents and Trademarks.  The Parent has, or has rights to use, all its Intellectual Property Rights.  The Parent has
received no written notice that the Intellectual Property Rights used by it violates or infringes upon the rights of any Person.  All such
Intellectual Property Rights are enforceable and there is no existing infringement by another Person of any of the Intellectual Property
Rights of others.  All Intellectual Property Rights are set forth on Schedule 7.15 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule.

7.16        Banks.  Schedule 7.16 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule sets forth (i) the name of each bank, trust company or
other financial institution and stock or other broker with which the Parent has an account, credit line or safe deposit box or vault, (ii)
the names of all persons authorized to draw thereon or to have access to any safe deposit box or vault, (iii) the purpose of each such
account, safe deposit box or vault, and (iv) the names of all persons authorized by proxies, powers of attorney or other like instrument
to act on behalf of the Parent in matters concerning any of its business or affairs.  No such proxies, powers of attorney or other like
instruments are irrevocable.  The Parent has furnished the Seller with true and complete copies of all such accounts, credit lines, and
safe deposit boxes or vaults and any other such document that it has had since its inception.

7.17        Absence of Certain Business Practices.  Neither the Parent, the Principal Shareholder nor any other Affiliate or
agent of the Parent or the Principal Shareholder, or any other person acting on behalf of or associated with the Parent, acting alone
or together, has (a) received, directly or indirectly, any rebates, payments, commissions, promotional allowances or any other
economic benefits, regardless of their nature or type, from any customer, supplier, employee or agent of any customer or supplier; or
(b) directly or indirectly given or agreed to give any money, gift or similar benefit to any customer, supplier, employee or agent of any
customer or supplier, any official or employee of any government (domestic or foreign), or any political party or candidate for office
(domestic or foreign), or other person who was, is or may be in a position to help or hinder the business of the Parent (or assist the
Parent in connection with any actual or proposed transaction), in each case which (i) may subject the Parent to any damage or
penalty in any civil, criminal or governmental litigation or proceeding, (ii) if not given in the past, may have had an adverse effect on
the business, financial condition, operations or prospects of the Parent, or (iii) if not continued in the future, may adversely affect
the  business, financial condition, operations or prospects of the Parent.

7.18        Transactions with Affiliates.  The Parent has not purchased, acquired or leased any Property or services from, or
sold, transferred or leased any Property or services to, or loaned or advanced any money to, or borrowed any money from, or entered
into or been subject to any management, consulting or similar agreement with, or engaged in any other significant transaction with
either the Principal Shareholder or any other officer, director or shareholder of the Parent or any of their respective Affiliates.  Neither
the Principal Shareholder nor any other Affiliate of the Parent is indebted to the Parent for money borrowed or other loans or
advances, and the Parent is not indebted to any such Affiliate.
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7.19        Absence of Certain Parent Control Person Actions or Events.  To the Parent’s Knowledge, none of the following has
occurred during the past three (3) years with respect to a Parent Control Person:

(a)           A petition under the federal bankruptcy laws or any provincial or state insolvency law was filed by or against, or a receiver,
fiscal agent or similar officer was appointed by a court for the business or Property of such Parent Control Person, or any partnership
in which he was a general partner at or within two (2) years before the time of such filing, or any corporation or business association
of which he was an executive officer at or within two years before the time of such filing;

(b)           Such Parent Control Person was convicted in a criminal proceeding or is a named subject of a pending criminal proceeding
(excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses);

(c)           Such Parent Control Person was the subject of any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or
vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily enjoining him from, or otherwise limiting, his engagement
in (A) any type of business practice, or (B) any activity in connection with the purchase or sale of any security or commodity or in
connection with any violation of federal or state securities laws or federal commodities laws;

(d)           Such Parent Control Person was the subject of any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or
vacated, of any federal or state authority barring, suspending or otherwise limiting for more than sixty (60) days the right of such
Parent Control Person to engage in any activity described in paragraph (c) of this item, or to be associated with Persons engaged in
any such activity; or

(e)           Such Parent Control Person was found by a court of competent jurisdiction in a civil action or by the Commission to have
violated any federal or state securities law, and the judgment in such civil action or finding by the Commission has not been
subsequently reversed, suspended, or vacated.

7.20        SEC Reports. The Parent has filed in a timely manner with the Commission all SEC Reports required to be filed pursuant to
the Securities Act and Exchange Act and is current in its reporting obligations.  As of their respective dates, all SEC Reports complied
in all material respects with requirements of the Securities Act and Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder and none of the SEC Reports contained an untrue statement of a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary
to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

7.21        Books and Records; Internal Accounting Controls.  The books and records of the Parent accurately reflect in all material
respects the information relating to the business of the Parent, the location and collection of its Properties and the nature of all
transactions giving rise to the obligations or accounts receivable of the Parent to the extent required to be contained therein.  The
Parent maintains a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that; (i) transactions are
executed in accordance with management’s general or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP and to maintain asset accountability, (iii) access to assets is permitted
only in accordance with management’s general or specific authorization, and (iv) the recorded accountability for assets is compared
with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate actions is taken with respect to any differences.  All such books and
records are appended to, and a description of the internal accounting controls are listed on, Schedule 7.22 of the Parent Disclosure
Schedule.

7.22        No Integrated Offering.  Neither the Parent, nor any of its Affiliates, nor any person acting on its or their behalf, has directly
or indirectly made any offers or sales of any security or solicited any offers to buy any security under circumstances that would
prevent the Parent from selling securities within the six (6) months following the Closing Date, whether pursuant to Rule 506
promulgated under the Securities Act or otherwise.
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7.23        Common Stock Symbol.  The Common Stock is currently quoted on the OTC QB under the symbol “RAPP”

7.24        No SEC or FINRA Inquiries; Delisting.  To the best of the Parent’s Knowledge, the Parent is not, and has never been, the
subject of any formal or informal inquiry or investigation by the Commission or FINRA.  The Parent has no Knowledge of any action
by the Commission, FINRA and/or the Principal Exchange that seeks to delist the shares of Common Stock from the Principal
Exchange or otherwise render such shares ineligible for quotation and trading on the Principal Exchange.

7.25        Disclosure of Material Information.  Neither the Parent nor any other Person acting on its behalf has provided or will
provide the Seller or its agents or counsel with any information that the Parent and/or the Principal Shareholder believe constitutes
material non-public information (other than with respect to the Transactions), unless prior thereto the Seller shall have executed a
written agreement regarding the confidentiality and use of such information.  The Parent and the Principal Shareholder understand
and confirm that the Seller will be relying on the foregoing representations in effecting transactions in securities of the Parent.

7.26        No Conflicts.  The execution and delivery by the Parent Parties and the Principal Shareholder of this Agreement and the
other Transaction Documents and compliance with the terms hereof and thereof do not, and the consummation of the Transactions
will not, conflict with, or result in any violation of or default (with or without notice or lapse of time, or both) under, or give rise to a right
of termination, redemption or acceleration of any obligation or loss of a material benefit under, or result in the creation of any
Encumbrance upon any of the Properties of the Parent under, any provision of (i) the Parent Charter Documents, (ii) any Contract to
which the Parent is a party or by which any of its Properties is bound, (iii) any material Permit or any Order to which the Parent is a
party, or (iv) any judgment, order or decree or Law applicable to the Parent or its Properties.

7.27        Labor Matters. The Parent is not a party to any representation or collective bargaining agreement with any employees.

7.28        Insurance. The Parent has furnished the Seller with a list of all material bonds and liability, fire and other insurance
contracts of whatsoever description to which the Parent is a party, and under which the Parent is or was a beneficiary.

7.29        Employment Agreements and Plans. The Parent has furnished the Seller with a list of all employment, consulting,
advisory and confidentiality agreements to which the Parent is a party.  The Parent has delivered to Seller true and complete copies
of each such agreement (or written descriptions thereof for any such agreements which are not in writing).  The Parent has not and
does not maintain or contribute to any outstanding incentive compensation, deferred compensation, profit sharing, stock option, stock
bonus, stock purchase, savings, consultant, retirement, pension, medical, dental, disability or other benefit plans or arrangements
with or for the benefit of any officer, employee or former officer, employee of the Parent or for the benefit of any distributor, sales
representative or other person resulting from a relationship with the Parent.

7.30        Books and Records. The Parent maintains all necessary Records pertaining to its business and operations as are required
to be maintained by the Exchange Act, the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, and any state securities laws or rules or
regulations applicable to the Parent.

7.31        Purchase Shares. The Purchase Shares to be issued pursuant to this Agreement will be duly authorized and reserved for
issuance and when issued in accordance with this Agreement, will be validly issued and outstanding, fully paid and non assessable
and vest in the holder thereof free and clear of any restrictions on transfer (other than any restrictions under applicable state or
federal securities laws), Taxes, Encumbrances, options, warrants, Purchase Rights, Contracts, commitments, equities, claims, and
demands and will not be subject to any pre-emptive or other similar rights.

7.32        Due Diligence. All documents and other materials relating to the Parent and provided to the Seller in connection with this
Agreement are true and correct in all material respects and do not contain any misstatement and/or omission.
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7.33        No Registration Rights.  No holder of any securities of the Parent has any registration and/or similar rights at any time or
under any circumstances which would require the Parent to register the Common Stock, or any other securities of the Parent, for sale
under the federal securities laws.

7.34        Bank Accounts. Set forth on Schedule 7.34 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule is a true, complete and accurate list of all
Bank Accounts, safe deposit boxes, and credit or charge cards maintained by the Parent.

7.35        Prior Sales of Securities. To the Parent’s Knowledge, all prior sales of securities by the Parent were either properly
registered under the federal and/or state securities laws or issued pursuant to an exemption therefrom and all such sales were all
done in accordance with all laws, rules and regulations and no Person/entity has any rescission and/or similar rights with respect to
any Purchase Shares.  The Parent has no matured and/or unmatured rescission and/or similar rights to its shareholders.

7.36        DTC Eligibility.  The Parent’s transfer agent is a participant in and the Common Stock is eligible for transfer pursuant to the
Depository Trust Company’ Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program.

7.37        No Subsidiaries.  Other than the Purchaser, the Parent has no Subsidiaries.

7.38        Disclosure. No representation or warranty by the Principal Shareholder or either of the Parent Parties in this Agreement,
any other Transaction Documents and the Exhibits and Schedules hereto and thereto and no statement contained in any document,
certificate, or other writing furnished or to be furnished by any of the Principal Shareholder or the Parent to the Seller or any of the
Seller’s representatives pursuant to the provisions hereof or in connection with the Transactions, contains or will contain any untrue
statement of material fact or omits or will omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements herein or therein
made, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

ARTICLE VIII
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDER

The Principal Shareholder hereby represents and warrants to the Seller as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date that the
Principal Shareholder is the true and lawful registered holder and beneficial owner of the Redemption Shares, all of which
Redemption Shares are free and clear of all Encumbrances.  None of the Redemption Shares is subject to any rights of any other
Person to acquire the same.

ARTICLE IX
PRE-CLOSING COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

9.1          Conduct of the Parent

(a)           Except as contemplated by this Agreement, during the period from the date hereof to the Closing Date, the Parent agrees,
and the Principal Shareholder covenants that it will cause the Parent, to conduct its business in accordance with its ordinary and
usual course of business and in compliance with the Securities Act and the Exchange Act; use their best efforts, subject to the
foregoing, to preserve Parent’s business organization, keep available to the Parent the services of Parent’s officers and employees
and maintain satisfactory relationships with customers, suppliers and others having business relationships with it; confer with
representatives of the Seller to keep them informed with respect to operational matters of a material nature and to report the general
status of the ongoing operations of the business of the Parent; maintain the Parent’s books and records in compliance with the
Exchange Act; and refrain from causing the Parent to take any of the following actions without the prior written consent of the Seller:

 (i)          Incur any debt, Liability or obligation, direct or indirect, whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise, other than
current liabilities incurred in the ordinary and usual course of its business, or pay any debt, Liability or obligation of any kind other
than such current liabilities and current maturities of existing long-term debt;
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 (ii)         Assume, guarantee, endorse or otherwise become responsible for the obligations of any other individual, firm or corporation
or make any loans or advances to any individual, firm or corporation;

 (iii)        Except as contemplated hereby, make any direct or indirect redemption, purchase or other acquisition of any shares of its
capital stock or declare, set aside or pay any dividend or distribution (whether in cash, capital stock or property) with respect to its
capital stock;

 (iv)        Transfer, lease, mortgage, pledge or otherwise encumber any of its Properties;

 (v)         Sell, lease, transfer or dispose of any of its Properties, waive or release any rights of material value, or cancel, compromise,
release or assign any indebtedness owed to it or any claims held by it;

 (vi)        Make any investment of a capital nature either by purchase of stock or securities, contributions to capital, property transfers
or otherwise, or by the purchase of any Property of any other individual, firm or corporation, other than in the ordinary and usual
course of its business;

 (vii)       Enter into any transaction with the Principal Shareholder, any director, officer, stockholder or Affiliate of the Principal
Shareholder or the Parent or with any Affiliate of any director, officer, stockholder or Affiliate of the Principal Shareholder or the
Parent, except as contemplated by this Agreement;

 (viii)      Amend the Parent Charter Documents;

 (ix)        Increase in any manner the compensation or fringe benefits of any of its officers, employees, including any increase of
pension or retirement allowance, life insurance premiums or other benefit payments to any such officers or employees, or commit
itself to any employment agreement or employment arrangement with or for the benefit of any officer, employee or registered
representatives or other person, except as contemplated by this Agreement;

 (x)         Violate any Legal Requirement applicable to the Parent and/or its business;

 (xi)        Issue or sell any shares of the Parent’s capital stock or other securities, or grant or enter into any option, warrant, call or
commitment with respect to any securities of the Parent;

 (xii)       Merge or consolidate with, or purchase a substantial portion of the assets of, or by any other manner acquire or combine
with any business or any corporation, partnership, limited liability company, association or other business organization or division
thereof or otherwise acquire or agree to acquire any assets which are material to the Parent, its business, financial condition or
results of operations;

 (xiii)      Pay any accrued fees or salaries to officers, directors, stockholders, or Affiliates, except salaries payable in accordance with
past practices of the Parent;

 (xiv)      Organize any Subsidiaries, acquire any capital stock or other equity securities of any corporation or acquire any equity or
ownership interest in any business;

 (xv)       Prepay any obligation having a fixed maturity of more than ninety (90) days from the date such obligation was issued or
incurred;

 (xvi)      Make any single capital expenditure or commitment in excess of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) or make aggregate capital
expenditures and commitments in excess of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000); or

 (xvii)     Enter into an agreement to do any of the things described in clauses (i) through (xvi) of this Section 9.1.
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9.2           Regulatory Consents, Authorizations, etc. Each Party hereto will use its reasonable best efforts to obtain all consents,
authorizations, orders and approvals of, and to make all filings and registrations with, any Governmental Authority any other person
which is required for or in connection with the consummation by it of the Transactions and will cooperate fully with the other Parties in
assisting them to obtain such consents, authorizations, orders and approvals and to make such filings and registrations. No Party
hereto will take or omit to take any action for the purpose of delaying, impairing or impeding the receipt of any required consent,
authorization, order or approval or the making of any required filing or registration.

9.3           Negotiations with Others. During the period from the date of this Agreement to the Closing Date, or until this Agreement
is terminated in accordance with the provisions of Article IX, if it is so terminated, the Parent will not, and the Principal Shareholder
will not permit the Parent, directly or indirectly, to initiate discussions or negotiations with, or provide any information other than
publicly available information to, any corporation, limited liability company, partnership, person or other entity or group (other than the
Seller) concerning any possible proposal regarding a sale of capital stock of the Parent or a merger, consolidation, sale of
substantially all Properties or other similar transaction involving the Parent or any division or major asset of the Parent without the
prior written consent of the Seller.

9.4           Publicity. The Parent will not, and the Principal Shareholder will ensure that the Parent not, issue any press release or
otherwise make any public statement with respect to the Transactions without the prior written consent of the Seller, except as may
be required under applicable Legal Requirements; provided, however, with respect to the Parent’s Current Reports on Form 8-K
(including, but not limited to, the Closing Form 8-K as such term is hereinafter defined, a “Form 8-K”), the Parties will consult with
each other before filing such Form 8-K’s and provide each other the opportunity to review and comment upon such Form 8-K’s and
the Parent shall not file such Form 8-K’s with the Commission without the Seller’s prior written consent, which shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

9.5           Access.  From the date of this Agreement to the Closing Date, the Parent will, and the Principal Shareholder will cause the
Parent to, give access to Seller and its representatives reasonable access during normal business hours to the Properties, books,
records, customer accounts and Contracts of the Parent and furnish to Seller such documents and information concerning Parent’s
business as Seller may reasonably request.  Seller will hold, and will cause its officers, directors, employees, accountants, counsel,
consultants, advisors and agents to hold, in confidence, unless compelled to disclose by judicial or administrative process or by other
requirements of applicable law, all confidential documents and information concerning Parent and its business provided to them.

9.6           Form 8-K Information.  Seller shall provide the Parent with such audited annual and unaudited interim financial
information, pro forma financial information and all footnotes thereto and auditor’s letters relating to its business as may be requested
by the Parent in order for the Parent to comply with its reporting and disclosure obligations under the rules and regulations of the
Commission (the “Form 8-K Financial Information”), in connection with the Parent’s preparation of its Current Report on Form 8-K,
and any amendments thereto, regarding the Closing (the “Closing Form 8-K”).  Seller shall provide such Form 8-K Financial
Information promptly so as to allow the Parent and its regularly retained accounting firm (the “Parent’s Accountant”) to: (i) review all
financial statements relating to Seller as may be required to be included in said Closing Form 8-K, and (ii) timely file the Closing Form
8-K.  Seller shall in a prompt and timely manner provide the Parent’s Accountant with such management representations as may be
requested by the Parent’s Accountant in connection with its preparation of any financial statements for Seller relating to the Closing
Form 8-K.

9.7           Appointment of Officers and Directors.  The Parent shall take all action necessary to have, effective immediately upon
the Closing, (i) John Arnone appointed as the Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Parent’s board of directors, and
(ii) Anthony Dudzinski appointed as the Parent’s Chief Operating Officer, Treasurer, Secretary and a member of the Parent’s board of
directors, and (iii) such other Persons appointed to such other positions as the Seller shall have communicated to the Parent prior to
the Closing.

9.8           Additional Agreements, Amendments or Supplements to Schedules.

(a)           Subject to the terms and conditions herein provided, each of the Parties hereto agrees to use its reasonable efforts to take,
or cause to be taken, all actions and to do, or cause to be done, all thing necessary, proper or advisable under applicable laws and
regulations to consummate and make effective, as soon as reasonably practicable, the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
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(b)           After the date hereof and prior to the Closing Date, the Parent and the Principal Shareholder, as soon as practicable, shall
supplement or amend the Schedules required by this Agreement with respect to any matter arising after the date hereof which, if
existing or occurring at the date hereof, would have been required to be set forth or described in such Schedules.

ARTICLE X
POST-CLOSING COVENANTS

10.1        Assignment of Office Facilities.  Parent shall obtain the consent from its landlord to, and shall deliver evidence thereof to
the Seller, the assignment (the “Lease Assignment”) of the lease for Parent’s offices at 146A Redwood Avenue, Carlsbad, CA 92008
(the “Leased Premises”), providing for and mandating the Principal Shareholder’s assumption of such Leased Premise, as of any
date determined by Seller in its sole discretion, provided that such date shall be anytime on or before the Closing Date. Pursuant to
the Lease Assignment, a copy of which shall be delivered by the Parent to Seller, the Parent shall assign to the Principal Shareholder
all of its rights and obligations under the Leased Premise for Parent’s offices and facilities, and the Principal Shareholder shall
assume all of such rights and obligations under the lease, upon the effective date of such assumption.  Upon effectuation of the
Lease Assignment, none of the Parent, the Purchaser or the Seller shall have any obligation under the Leased Premises to any
Person.

10.2        Filing of Current Report on Form 8-K and Press Release. The Parent shall no later than four (4) Business Days after the
Closing file the Closing Form 8-K with the Commission.  Other than with respect to any such Form 8-K, the Parties will consult with
each other before issuing, and provide each other the opportunity to review and comment upon, any press release or other public
statements with respect to the Agreement and the Transactions and shall not issue any such press release or make any such public
statement without the prior written consent of the other Parties, except as may be required pursuant to applicable Legal
Requirements.

10.3        Blue Sky Laws.  The Parent shall take any action (other than qualifying to do business in any jurisdiction in which it is not
now so qualified) required to be taken under any applicable state securities laws in connection with the issuance of the Issuable
Shares in connection with this Agreement.

10.4        Further Assurances. At any time and from time to time after the Closing, the Parties shall execute, deliver and
acknowledge such other documents and instruments of transfer, assignment or conveyance and do such further acts and things as
may be reasonably required in order to consummate the Transactions.

ARTICLE XI
CONDITIONS TO THE CLOSING

11.1        Conditions to Closing and the Purchaser’s Obligation to Purchase the Purchased Assets. The obligations of the
Parent Parties to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement including, without limitation, the purchase of the
Purchased Assets on the Closing Date, are subject to the fulfillment, to the reasonable satisfaction of the Parent, prior to or on the
Closing Date of each of the following conditions:

(a)           Regulatory Consents, Authorizations, etc. All consents, authorizations, orders and approvals of, and filings and registrations
with, any Governmental Authority which are required for or in connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the
consummation by each Party hereto of the Transactions shall have been obtained or made

(b)           Representations, Warranties, Covenants, etc. The representations and warranties of the Seller contained in this Agreement
and/or the other Transaction Documents to which it is a Party, taken together with the Exhibits and Schedules attached hereto, shall
have been true and correct in all material respects on the date hereof and, taken together with the Schedules attached hereto on the
Closing Date, shall also be true and correct in all material respects on and as of the Closing Date, except for changes contemplated
by this Agreement, with the same force and effect as if made on and as of the Closing Date; and the Seller shall have performed or
complied in all material respects with all agreements and covenants required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by
each of them on or prior to the Closing Date.
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(c)           Litigation; Other Events. No claim, action, suit or proceeding shall have been instituted or shall be threatened by any person
which seeks to prohibit, restrict or delay consummation of the purchase of the Purchased Assets hereunder, or any of the conditions
to consummation of such purchase, or to subject the Parent Parties, the Principal Shareholder or any other of the Parent’s directors,
officers, employees or agents to liability on the ground that it or they have breached any law or regulation or otherwise acted
improperly in relation to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(d)           Closing Deliveries.  The Closing Deliveries specified in Section 5.2(a) shall have been made by the Seller.

11.2        Conditions to Closing and the Seller’s Obligation to Sell the Purchased Assets. The obligations of the Seller to
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement including, without limitation, the sale of the Purchased Assets on the
Closing Date, are subject to fulfillment, to the satisfaction of the Seller, on or prior to the Closing Date, of each of the following
conditions:

(a)           Regulatory Consents, Authorizations, etc. All consents, authorizations, orders and approvals of, and filings and registrations
with, any Governmental Authority which are required for or in connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the
consummation by each Party hereto of the Transactions shall have been obtained or made.

( b )           Representations, Warranties, Covenants, etc. The representations and warranties of the Parent and the Principal
Shareholder contained in this Agreement and/or the other Transaction Documents, taken together with the Exhibits and Schedules
attached hereto, shall have been true and correct in all material respects on the date hereof and, taken together with the Schedules
attached hereto on the Closing Date, shall also be true and correct in all material respects on and as of the Closing Date, except for
changes contemplated by this Agreement, with the same force and effect as if made on and as of the Closing Date; and the Parent
and the Principal Shareholder shall have performed or complied in all material respects with all agreements and covenants required
by this Agreement and/or the other Transaction Documents to be performed or complied with by it on or prior to the Closing Date.

(c)           Litigation; Other Events. No claim, action, suit or proceeding shall have been instituted or shall be threatened by any person
(excluding any such matter initiated by or on behalf of Seller) which (i) seeks to prohibit, restrict or delay consummation of the
purchase of the Purchased Assets hereunder, or any of the conditions to consummation of such purchase (ii) seeks to subject the
Seller or any of its directors, officers, employees or agents to liability on the ground that it or they have breached any law or regulation
or otherwise acted improperly in relation to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, or otherwise (iii) could in sole and
absolute discretion of the Seller have a Material Adverse Effect on the Seller, the Parent Parties or their respective businesses.

( d )           Due Diligence.  Seller shall have had the right through and until the date of the Closing, to conduct a full due diligence
review of the Parent and of its Affiliates, and shall be satisfied with the results thereof.

(e)           Closing Form 8-K.  The Parent shall have prepared and be ready to timely file the Closing Form 8-K within four (4) business
days from the Closing Date.

(f)           Redemption.  The Parent shall have completed the Redemption.

(g)           Offering.  The Parent shall have completed the Offering.

( h )           Absence of Certain Events.  Since the Applicable Date and up to and including the Closing, there shall not have been any
event, circumstance, change or effect that, individually or in the aggregate, had or might in the opinion of the Seller have a Material
Adverse Effect on the Parent Parties.
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(i)           Termination of Contracts. Unless otherwise expressly specified by the Seller in writing, all Contracts between the Parent and
any Affiliate thereof shall have been terminated in all respects on terms satisfactory to Seller, all obligations, claims or entitlements
thereunder shall be unconditionally waived and released by such Affiliates and written evidence thereof satisfactory in form and
substance to Seller shall have been delivered to Seller.

( j)           Proceedings Satisfactory.  All proceedings to be taken by the Parent in connection with the Transactions and all documents
incident thereto shall be satisfactory in form and substance to Seller and its counsel, and Seller and said counsel shall have received
all such counterpart originals or certified or other copies of such documents as it or they may request.

( k )           Bankruptcy Proceedings.  No proceeding in which the Parent or the Principal Shareholder shall be a debtor, defendant or
party seeking an order for its own relief or reorganization shall have been brought or be pending by or against such person under any
United States or state bankruptcy or insolvency law.

(l)           Quotation of Common Stock.  The shares of Common Stock shall be quoted for trading on the Principal Exchange under the
symbol “RAPP” and there shall be at least one broker-dealer registered with the Commission and a member of FINRA and SIPC
making a market in such shares.
 
(m)           Shareholder List.  The shareholder lists (i) heretofore furnished and (ii) to be furnished within three (3) business days prior
to the Closing Date, each by the Parent to the Seller, shall have been certified as to accuracy and completeness by the Parent’s
transfer agent and the information contained therein shall be satisfactory to the Seller in its sole and absolute discretion.

(n)          NOBO List.  The Parent shall have furnished the Seller with a Non-Objecting Beneficial Owners list dated no later than three
(3) business days prior to the Closing Date.

( o )          Officer’s Certificate.  The Parent shall have delivered to the Seller an Officer’s Certificate, dated as of the Closing Date,
confirming the accuracy of the Parent’s representations, warranties and covenants as of the Closing Date and confirming the
compliance by the Parent with the conditions precedent set forth in this Section 11.2 as of the Closing Date.

(p)          Secretary’s Certificate.  The Parent shall have delivered to the Seller a Secretary’s Certificate, dated as of the Closing Date,
as to (i) the resolutions adopted by the Parent’s board of directors or any committee thereof approving the Transactions, which
resolutions shall be in full force and effect, (ii) the Articles of Incorporation of the Parent, which Articles of Incorporation shall be in full
force and effect, (iii) the Bylaws of Parent, which Bylaws shall be in full force and effect, and (iv) the authority and incumbency of the
officers of the Parent executing this Agreement and any other documents required to be executed or delivered in connection
therewith.

( q )          10b-5 Letters.  The Seller shall have received 10b-5 Letters from each of the Principal Shareholder and each of the other
officers and directors of the Parent addressed to the Seller.

(r)           DTC Eligibility.  The shares of Common Stock shall be DTC eligible and proof thereof shall be furnished to the Seller.

(s)           Appointments.  The Parent shall have appointed (i) John Arnone as the Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of
the Parent’s board of directors, and (ii) Anthony Dudzinski as the Parent’s Chief Operating Officer, Treasurer, Secretary and a
member of the Parent’s board of directors, and delivered proof thereof.

(t)           Resignations.  The Parent shall have obtained the resignation of all its present officers and directors, including but not limited
to the Principal Shareholder, and delivered proof thereof, including but not limited to fully executed resolutions of the board of
directors of the Parent accepting such resignations.

(u )           Closing Deliveries.  The Closing Deliveries specified in Section 5.2(b) shall have been made and delivered to the Seller by
the Parent Parties and the Principal Shareholder.
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(v)          No Liabilities.  Neither the Parent nor the Purchaser shall have any Liabilities (and there shall be no basis for any present or
future action, suit, proceeding, hearing, investigation, charge, complaint, claim, or demand against any of them giving rise to any
Liability).
 

ARTICLE XII
TERMINATION

12.1        Prior to the Closing Date. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Closing Date:

(a)           By the written agreement of the Parties;

(b)           By the Seller or the Parent in the event that the Closing has not occurred by the Termination Date;

(c)           By the Seller if the conditions set forth in Section 11.2 shall not have been complied with or performed in any material
respect and such noncompliance or nonperformance shall not have been cured or eliminated (or by its nature cannot be cured or
eliminated) on or before the Termination Date;

(d)          At the option of the Seller if (i) the Purchased Assets sustain a material loss, whether or not insured, as provided in Article III
hereof; (ii) trading in securities on the New York Stock Exchange has been suspended or limited; (iii) material governmental
restrictions have been imposed on trading in securities generally (not in force and effect on the date hereof); (iv) a banking
moratorium has been declared by federal or Nevada authorities; (v) an outbreak of major international hostilities or other national or
international calamity has occurred; (vi) a pending or threatened legal or governmental proceeding or action relating to the
operations, business or financial condition of the Seller, or a notification has been received by any of the Parties hereto of the threat
of any such proceeding or action, which could materially adversely effect the Purchased Assets; (vii) any material adverse change in
the financial or securities markets beyond normal market fluctuations has occurred since the date of this Agreement, and is
continuing, and is reasonably expected to have material adverse effect on the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; (viii) a
terrorist attack upon the United States substantially similar in magnitude and scope to those that occurred on September 11, 2001; or
(ix) any material adverse change has occurred in the Purchased Assets.

12.2        Liabilities upon Termination prior to the Closing Date. In the event of the termination of this Agreement prior to the
Closing Date, this Agreement shall thereafter be valid solely to the extent performed, but shall become void and have no effect as to
the obligations of the Parties as to all matters to be performed on or after the Closing Date, and no Party hereto shall have any liability
concerning those matters to be performed after the Closing Date to the other Parties hereto or their respective stockholders,
directors, officers, employees or agents in respect thereof, except that nothing herein will relieve any Party from liability for any willful
breach of any covenant herein contained prior to such termination.  If this Agreement is terminated prior to the Closing Date, each of
the Parties hereto shall bear their own expenses incurred in negotiating the Transactions and the preparation of this Agreement and
its Schedules, Exhibits and all other related documents.

ARTICLE XIII
MISCELLANEOUS

13.1        Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any right created hereby shall be assignable by any Party hereto.

13.2        Non-Waiver. The failure in any one or more instances of a Party to insist upon performance of any of the terms, covenants
or conditions of this Agreement, to exercise any right or privilege in this Agreement conferred, or the waiver by said Party of any
breach of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement, shall not be construed as a subsequent waiver of any such
terms, covenants, conditions, rights or privileges, but the same shall continue and remain in full force and effect as if no such
forbearance or waiver had occurred. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized representative of
the waiving Party. A breach of any representation, warranty or covenant shall not be affected by the fact that a more general or more
specific representation, warranty or covenant was not also breached.
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13.3        Binding Effect; Benefit. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties hereto, and their
successors and permitted assigns. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, shall confer on any Person other than the Parties
hereto, and their respective successors and permitted assigns, any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities under or by reason of
this Agreement.

13.4        Notices. Any notice or communication must be in writing and will be deemed given: (i) when delivered if delivered
personally (including by courier); (ii) on the third (3rd) Business Day after mailing, if mailed, postage prepaid, by registered or certified
mail (return receipt requested); (iii) on the day after mailing if sent by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service which
maintains records of the time, place, and recipient of delivery; or (iv) upon receipt of a confirmed transmission, if sent by email or
facsimile transmission. For purposes of notice, the addresses of the Parties shall be:

If to the Parent or the Principal Shareholder:

 R & A Productions, Inc.
 146A Redwood Avenue
 Carlsbad, CA 92008
 Attention: Hector Medina, CEO
  
 Telephone:    _________________________
 Facsimile:     _________________________
  
If to the Seller:
  
 American CryoStem Corporation
 188 Bergen Place, Suite 204
 Red Bank, NJ 07701
 Attention: Anthony Dudzinski, CEO
  
 Telephone:  (732) 747-1007
 Facsimile: (732) 747-7782
 
13.5        Governing Law; Venue.   This Agreement shall be governed solely and exclusively by and construed in accordance with
the internal laws of the State of New York without regard to the conflicts of laws principles thereof.  The Parties hereto hereby
expressly and irrevocably agree that any suit or proceeding arising directly and/or indirectly pursuant to or under this Agreement shall
be brought solely in a federal or state court located in the City, State and County of New York. By its execution hereof, the Parties
hereby covenant and irrevocably submit to the in personam jurisdiction of the federal and state courts located in the State of New
York and agree that any process in any such action may be served upon any of them personally, or by certified mail or registered mail
upon them or their agent, return receipt requested, with the same full force and effect as if personally served upon them in the State
of New York. The Parties hereto expressly and irrevocably waive any claim that any such jurisdiction is not a convenient forum for any
such suit or proceeding and any defense or lack of in personam jurisdiction with respect thereto. In the event of any such action or
proceeding, the Party prevailing therein shall be entitled to payment from the other Party hereto of its reasonable counsel fees and
disbursements.

13.6        Non-Survival of Representations and Warranties. No representations and warranties made by any Party hereto herein,
in any Schedule, Exhibit or certificate delivered pursuant hereto or in any other Transaction Document shall survive the Closing Date.

13.7        Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original,
but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
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13.8        Facsimile or Email Transmissions. This Agreement, the other Transaction Documents and all agreements, documents
and certificates delivered pursuant to this Agreement and/or the other Transaction Documents or in connection with the Transactions
may be executed by any Party and transmitted by such Party to any other Party or Parties by facsimile or email, and any such
document shall be deemed to have full force and effect as if the facsimile or email signature or signatures on such documents were
original.

13.9        Third Party Beneficiaries.  None of the provisions of this Agreement or any Transaction Document is intended to grant any
right or benefit to any Person or entity which is not a Party to this Agreement.

13.10      Headings.  The article and section headings contained in this Agreement are solely for the purpose of reference, are not
part of this Agreement and shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

13.11      Severability.  In the event that any provision in this Agreement shall be determined to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in
any respect, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be in any way impaired, and the illegal, invalid or unenforceable
provision shall be fully severed from this Agreement and there shall be automatically added in lieu thereof a provision as similar in
terms and intent to such severed provision as may be legal, valid and enforceable.

13.12      Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the other Transaction Documents, constitute the entire contract between the
Parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof, and supersede all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings
between the Parties with respect to such subject matter.
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
 

 
26

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first above written.

SELLER:
   
AMERICAN CRYOSTEM CORPORATION
   
By: /s/ Anthony Dudzinski  
Name: Anthony Dudzinski  
Title: Chief Executive Officer  
   
PARENT:  
   
R & PRODUCTIONS, INC.  
   
By: /s/ Hector Medina  
Name: Hector Medina  
Title: Chief Executive Officer  
   
PURCHASER:  
   
AMERICAN CRYOSTEM ACQUISITION CORP.  
   
By: /s/ John Arnone  
Name: John Arnone  
Title: Chief Executive Officer  
   
PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDER:  
   
/s/ Hector Medina  
Hector Medina, an Individual  
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Exhibit 10.1
 

American CryoStem Corporation

INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION PLAN

Plan Summary
 
This Incentive Stock Option Plan (the “Plan”) provides that an aggregate of up to 3,000,0001 shares of common stock, par value
$0.001 per share (the “Common Stock”) of American CryoStem Corporation (the “Company”) may be optioned to officers and other
employees, members of the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”), advisory board members and consultants collectively
“employees”.  The plan provides authority for a Stock Option Plan Committee (the “Committee”) to select the employees of the
Company, and its subsidiaries, to whom incentive stock options will be granted.    There are approximately 10 officers and directors of
the Company plus other key employees eligible to receive options under the plan.  All officers may participate in the plan.
 
Following the statutory requirements of Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code, the Plan provides that the Committee may
establish the purchase price of the Common Stock at the time the option is granted.  The purchase price may be less than the fair
market value of the Common Stock. The aggregate fair market value of the Common Stock for which any employee may be granted
options in any calendar year shall not exceed $1,000,000 plus any unused limit carried over (as defined in Section 3(d)) to such year
from any prior calendar year beginning on or after October 1, 2010.
 
The Plan terminates ten years from its effective date. All new options to be granted are nontransferable.  The Company is to receive
no cash consideration for granting options under the Plan.  However, when an option is exercised, the holder is required to pay the
option price, in cash or certified bank check, shares of Common Stock or in any combination of the above, for the number of shares of
Common Stock to be issued upon exercise of the option unless the holder elects to receive cash or stock by exercise of stock
appreciation rights.2

 
Under the plan, a Stock Appreciation Right (“SAR”) permits the holder of an option to elect to receive cash or a lesser amount of stock
without payment, upon exercise of an option. The amount of cash receivable is the difference between the option price stated in the
option and the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date of the exercise.  The lesser number of shares receivable is the
number of shares which could be purchased with the cash receivable.  An important distinction between the exercise of an incentive
stock option and the exercise of a SAR is that, upon the exercise of an SAR, the option holder need not pay the option price in cash.
The shares or cash received by an optionee upon exercising an SAR, however, are subject to tax under Section 83.3

 
1.  Purpose of the Plan
This Incentive Stock Option Plan (hereinafter called the “Plan”) for American CryoStem Corporation (hereinafter called the
“Company”) is intended to advance the interests of the Company by providing officers and other employees who have substantial
responsibility for the direction and management of the Company with additional incentive to promote the success of the business, to
increase their proprietary interest in the success of the Company, and to encourage them to remain in its employ. The above aims will
be effectuated through the granting of certain stock options. It is intended that options issued under the Plan and designated by the
Committee (as hereinafter defined) under Section 3(b) will qualify as Incentive Stock Options (hereinafter called “ISO’s”) under
Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and the terms of the Plan shall be interpreted in
accordance with this intention.

1 This figure is typically 10% of the number issued and outstanding.
2 This Plan does not provide for SAR’s.  Please let us know if you would like it to.
3 Supra.
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2.  Administration of the Plan
The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) shall appoint a Stock Option Plan Committee (hereinafter called the
“Committee”) which shall consist of not less than two (2) members, at least one of whom shall be a member of the Board.  Subject to
the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have plenary authority, in its discretion: (a) to determine the employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries (from among the class of employees eligible under Section 3 to receive options under the Plan) to
whom options shall be granted; (b) to determine the time or times at which options shall be granted; (c) to determine the exercise
price of each option, which price shall not be less than the minimum specified in Section 5; (d) to determine (subject to Section 7) the
time or times when each option shall become exercisable and the duration of the exercise period; and (e) to interpret the Plan and to
prescribe, amend, and rescind rules and regulations relating to it.  The Board may from time to time appoint members of the
Committee in substitution for members previously appointed and may fill vacancies, however caused, in the Committee; provided,
however, that at all times at least one member shall be a member of the Board.  The Committee shall select one of its members as its
chairman and shall hold its meetings at such times and places as it shall deem advisable.  All action of the Committee shall be taken
by unanimous vote of its members. Any action may be taken by a written instrument signed by all the members of the Committee,
and action so taken shall be fully as effective as if it had been taken by a unanimous vote of the members at a meeting duly called
and held.  The Committee may appoint a secretary to keep minutes of its meetings and shall make rules and regulations for the
conduct of its business, as it shall deem advisable.
 
3.  Eligibility and Limitations on Options Granted Under the Plan
 

(a)           Options will be granted only to persons who are employees of the Company or a subsidiary corporation of the
Company (a “Subsidiary Corporation”) who agree, in writing, to remain in the employ of, and render services to, the Company or a
Subsidiary Corporation.  The term “employees” shall include officers, directors, executives, and supervisory personnel, Board
members, advisory board members and consultants as well as other employees of the Company or a Subsidiary Corporation of the
Company.  The term “Subsidiary Corporation” shall, for the purposes of this Plan, be defined in the same manner as such term is
defined in Section 424(f) of the Internal Revenue Code.
 

 (b)           At the time of the grant of each option under this Plan, the Committee shall determine whether such option is to be
designated as an ISO.  If an option is to be so designated as an ISO, then the provisions of Section 7(d) of this Plan shall be made
applicable to such option.  In addition, no option granted to any employee, who at the time of such grant, owns shares of common
stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Common Stock”), of the Company possessing more than ten percent (10%) of the total
combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, may be designated as an ISO unless, at the
time of such grant, (i) the option price is fixed at not less than one hundred ten percent (110%) percent of the fair market value of the
stock subject to the option, and (ii) exercise of such option is prohibited by its terms after the expiration of five (5) years from the date
such is granted.
 

(c)           The aggregate fair market value of the stock for which any employee may be granted options designated as ISO’s
in any calendar year (under this or any other stock option plan established by the Company or a Subsidiary Corporation) shall not
exceed $1,000,000 plus any unused limit carryover (as defined in Section 3(d) hereof) to such year from any prior calendar year
beginning on or after October 1, 2010.
 

(d)           The unused limit carryover from any such calendar year shall be one-half of any excess of $1,000,000 over the
aggregate fair market value of the stock for which an employee was granted options that qualify (whether from their issuance or as a
result of subsequent amendment and election by the Company) as ISO’s in any such calendar year (under this and all other stock
option plans established by the Company or a Subsidiary Corporation).  The unused limit for any calendar year shall be carried
forward for three (3) years.  ISO’s granted in any year shall be applied against the current year limitation first and then against the
remaining unused limit carryovers to such year in the order of the calendar year in which the carryovers arose.
 
4.  Shares of Common Stock Subject to the Plan
There will be reserved for issuance upon the exercise of options to be granted from time to time under the Plan (subject to the
provisions of Section 12) an aggregate of 3,000,000 shares of Common Stock, which shares may be issued in whole or in part, as the
Board shall from time to time determine.  Any shares of Common Stock subject to an option under the Plan, which option for any
reason expires or is terminated unexercised as to such shares, may again be subject to an option under the Plan.
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5.  Option Price
The purchase price under each option issued shall be determined by the Committee at the time the option is granted, but in no event
shall such purchase price be less than one hundred percent (100%) of the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date of
grant.
 
The term “fair market value” shall be defined as either the average of the highest offer and lowest bid market price of said Common
Stock on any public market if the stock of the Company is publicly traded, as of the date of the grant of the option, or, if there be no
sales on such date, on the most recent date upon which such stock was traded, or if there is no market for the Common Stock of the
Company, or the price at which the Company may be offering private investment into the Company, or finally, the book value of the
Common Stock as of the end of the most recent preceding month as given on the books of the Company applying generally accepted
accounting principles on a consistent basis giving effect to all accruals.
 
6.  Anti-Dilution
In the event that additional shares of Common Stock are issued pursuant to a stock split or a stock dividend, the number of shares of
Common Stock then covered by each outstanding option granted hereunder shall be increased proportionately with no increase in
the total purchase price of the shares then so covered, and the number of shares of Common Stock reserved for the purpose of the
Plan shall be increased by the same proportion.  In the event that the shares of Common Stock from time to time issued and
outstanding are reduced by a combination of shares, the number of shares of Common Stock then covered by each outstanding
option granted hereunder shall be reduced proportionately with no reduction in the total price of the shares then so covered, and the
number of shares of Common Stock reserved for the purposes of the Plan shall be reduced by the same proportion.  In the event that
the Company should transfer assets to another corporation and distribute the stock of such other corporation without the surrender of
Common Stock, and if such distribution is not taxable as a dividend and no gain or loss is recognized by reason of Section 355 of the
Code, or some similar section, then the total purchase price of the shares covered by each outstanding option shall be reduced by an
amount which bears the same ratio to the total purchase price then in effect as the market value of the stock distributed in respect of
a share of the Common Stock, immediately following the distribution, bears to the aggregate of the market value  at such time of a
share of the Common Stock and the stock distributed in respect thereof.  All such adjustments shall be made by the Committee,
whose determination upon the same shall be final and binding upon the optionees.  No fractional shares shall be issued, and any
fractional shares resulting from the computations pursuant to this Section 6 shall be eliminated from the respective option.  No
adjustment shall be made for cash dividends or the issuance to stockholders of rights to subscribe for additional Common Stock or
other securities.
 
7.  Period of Option and Certain Limitations on Right to Exercise
 

(a)           All options issued under the Plan shall be exercisable for such period as the Committee shall determine, but shall in
no event be exercisable for more than ten (10) years from the date of grant thereof.
 

(b)           The period of the option, once it is granted, may be reduced only as provided for in Section 9 in connection with the
termination of employment or death of the optionee or in Section 7(c) in the case of less than satisfactory performance.
 

(c)           Each option granted under this Plan shall become exercisable immediately following the date the option is
granted.  Any option designated as an ISO shall be exercisable in full, or as to any part thereof, at any time following the date such
option is granted, but only if the optionee chooses to exercise such option and to pay for such option in the manner set forth in
Section 7(e) hereof (i.e., in cash or certified check or shares of the Common Stock, or any combination of the foregoing in an amount
equal to the full option price of the shares being purchased).
 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, (i) prescribe longer time periods and additional
requirements with respect to the exercise of an option and/or (ii) terminate in whole or in part such portion of any option as has yet
become exercisable at the time of termination if it determines that the optionee is not performing satisfactorily the duties to which he
was assigned on the date the option was granted or duties of at least equal responsibility.
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(d)           No option granted by the Committee as an ISO may be exercised while there is outstanding in the hands of the

optionee any ISO (whether granted under this Plan or any other stock option plan established by the Company or a subsidiary of the
Company) which was granted before the granting of the ISO hereunder sought to be exercised.  For purposes of this Section 7(d),
any ISO shall be treated as outstanding until exercised in full or expired.
 

(e)           Subject to the alternative settlement methods set forth in Section 7(h) hereof, the exercise of any option shall also
be contingent upon receipt by the Company of cash or certified check to its order, shares of Common Stock, or any combination of
the foregoing in an amount equal to the full option price of the shares being purchased.  For purposes of this paragraph, shares of
Common Stock that are delivered in payment of the option price shall be valued at their fair market value determined under the
method set forth in Section 5 of this Plan applied as of the date of the exercise of the option. However, in order to facilitate the
accumulation of funds to enable employees to exercise their option, they will have the right, if they so elect, to direct the Company or
a Subsidiary Corporation to withhold from their compensation regular amounts to be applied toward the exercise of the
options.  Funds credited to the stock option accounts will be under the control of the Company until applied to the payment of the
option price at the direction of the employee or returned to the employee in the event the amount is not used for purchase of shares
under option, and all funds received or held by the Company under the Plan may be used for any corporate purpose, and no interest
shall be payable to a participant on account of any amount held. Such amounts may be withdrawn by the participant at any time, in
whole or in part, for any purpose.
 

(f)           No optionee or his legal representative or distributees, as the case may be, will be deemed to be a holder of any
share subject to an option unless and until certificates for such shares are issued to him or them under the terms of the Plan.  No
adjustment shall be made for dividends or other rights for which the record date is prior to the date such stock certificate is issued.
 

(g)           In no event may an option be exercised after the expiration of its term.
 

(h)           As an alternative to payment in full by the optionee for the number of shares of Common Stock in respect of which
an option is exercised, the Committee may provide alternative settlement methods as follows:

(i)           The Committee, in its discretion, may provide in the initial grant of any option that the optionee may elect
either of the alternative settlement methods set forth in subsection (ii) below.

(ii)           The alternative settlement methods are for the optionee, upon exercise of the option, to receive from the
Company:

(1)           Cash in an amount equal to the excess of the value of one share over the option price times the
number of shares as to which the option is exercised; or

(2)           The number of whole shares of Common Stock having an aggregate value not greater than the
cash amount calculated under Section 7(h)(ii)(1).  For purposes of determining an alternative settlement, the value per share shall be
the “Fair market value” determined under the method set forth in Section 5 hereof, applied as of the date of the exercise of the option,
or such other price as the Committee shall determine to be the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date of exercise.

(i)            An election of any of the alternative settlement methods provided for under Section 7 (h)(ii) shall be binding on the
optionee, when made.  The optionee may elect to what extent the alternative settlement method elected shall be paid in cash, in
Common Stock, or partially in Common Stock and partially in cash, provided that the aggregate value of the payments shall not be
greater than the cash amount calculated under Section 7 (h)(ii)(1).  No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued, and the
Committee shall determine whether cash shall be paid in lieu of such fractional share interest or whether such fractional share
interest shall be eliminated.
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(j)           The alternative settlement methods provided above in Section 7(h)(ii) shall not be available unless the cash amount

calculated thereunder shall be positive, i.e., when the value of one share shall exceed the option price per share.
 

(k)           Exercise of an option in any manner, including an exercise involving an election of an alternative settlement method
with respect to an option, shall result in a decrease in the manner of shares of Common Stock which thereafter may be available
under the Plan by the number of shares as to which the option is exercised.

(1)           To the extent that the exercise of options by one of the alternative settlement methods provided for in Section (h)(ii)
results in compensation income to the optionee, the Company will withhold from the amount due to the optionee utilizing such
alternative settlement method, an appropriate amount for federal, state and local taxes.
 
8.  Assignability
 Each option granted under this Plan shall be transferable only by will or the laws of descent and distribution and shall be exercisable,
during his lifetime, only by the employee to whom the option is granted.  Except as permitted by the preceding sentence, no option
granted under the Plan or any of the rights and privileges thereby conferred shall be transferred, assigned, pledged, or hypothecated
in any way (whether by operation of law or otherwise), and no such option, right, or privilege shall be subject to execution,
attachment, or similar process.  Upon any attempt to so transfer, assign, pledge, hypothecate, or otherwise dispose of the option, or
of the right or privilege conferred thereby, contrary to the provisions hereof, or upon the levy of any attachment or similar process
upon such option, right of privilege, the option and such rights and privileges shall immediately become null and void.
 
9.  Effect of Termination of Employment. Death or Disability
 

(a)           In the event of the termination of employment of an optionee by reason of (i) a discharge for cause or (ii) voluntary
separation from the Company or any Subsidiary Corporation on the part of the optionee and without consent of the Company, any
option or options theretofore granted to him under this Plan to the extent not theretofore exercised by him shall forthwith terminate.
 

(b)           In the event of the termination of employment of an optionee (otherwise than by reason of death or retirement of the
optionee at his Retirement Date by the Company or by any Subsidiary Corporation employing the optionee at such time), any option
or options granted to him under the Plan to the extent not theretofore exercised shall be deemed cancelled and terminated forthwith,
except that, subject to the provisions of section (a) of this Section, such optionee may exercise any options theretofore granted to him,
which have not then expired and which are otherwise exercisable within the provisions of Section 7(c) hereof, within three (3) months
after such termination.  If the employment of an optionee shall be terminated by reason of the optionee’s retirement at his Retirement
Date by the Company or by any Subsidiary Corporation employing the optionee at such time, the optionee shall have the right to
exercise such option or options held by him to the extent that such options have not expired, at any time within three (3) months after
such retirement. The provisions of Section 7(c) to the contrary notwithstanding, upon retirement, all options held by an optionee shall
be immediately exercisable in full.  The transfer of an optionee from the employ of the Company to a Subsidiary Corporation or vice
versa, or from one Subsidiary Corporation to another, shall not be deemed to constitute a termination of employment for purposes of
this Plan.

(c)           In the event that an optionee shall die while employed by the Company or any Subsidiary Corporation or shall die
within three (3) months after retirement at his Retirement Date (by the Company or by any Subsidiary Corporation) any option or
options granted to him under this Plan and not theretofore exercised by him or expired shall be exercisable by the estate of the
optionee or by any person who acquired such option by bequest or inheritance at any time within one (1) year after the death of the
optionee. References hereinabove to the optionee shall be deemed to include any person entitled to exercise the option after the
death of the optionee under the terms of this Section.
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(d)           In the event of the termination of employment of an optionee by reason of the optionee’s disability, the optionee

shall have the right, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7(c) hereof, to exercise all options held by him, to the extent that
options have not previously expired or been exercised, at any time within one (1) year after such termination. The term “disability”
shall, for the purposes of this Plan, be defined in the same manner as such term is defined in Section 72(m)(7) of the Code.
 

(e)           For the purposes of this Plan, “Retirement Date” shall mean any date an employee is otherwise entitled to retire
under the Company’s retirement plans, if any, and shall include normal retirement at age 65, early retirement at age 62, and retirement
at age 60 after 30 years of service.
 
10.  Listing and Registration of Shares
Each option shall be subject to the requirement that if at any time the Committee shall determine, in its discretion, that the listing,
registration, or qualification of the shares covered thereby upon any securities exchange or under any state or federal law or the
consent or approval of any governmental regulatory body, is necessary or desirable as a condition of, or in connection with, the
granting of such option or the issue or purchase of shares thereunder, such option may not be exercised in whole or in part unless
and until such listing, registration, qualification, consent, or approval shall have been effected or obtained free of any conditions not
acceptable to the Committee.

11.  Expiration and Termination of the Plan
Options may be granted under the Plan at any time or from time to time as long as the total number of shares optioned or purchased
under this Plan does not exceed 3,000,000 shares of Common Stock. The Plan may be abandoned or terminated at any time by the
Board except with respect to any options then outstanding under the Plan. No option shall be granted pursuant to the Plan after ten
(10) years from the effective date of the Plan.
 
12.  Amendment of Plan
The Board may at any time and from time to time modify and amend the Plan (including such form of option agreement) in any
respect; provided, however, that no such amendment shall: (a) increase (except in accordance with Section 6) the maximum number
of shares for which options may be granted under the Plan either in the aggregate or to an individual employee; or (b) reduce (except
in accordance with Section 6) the minimum option prices which may be established under the Plan; or (c) extend the period or
periods during which options may be granted or exercised; or (d) change the provisions relating to the determination of employees to
whom options shall be granted and the number of shares to be covered by such options; or (e) change the provisions relating to
adjustments to be made upon changes in capitalization; or (f) change the method for selection of the Committee as provided by
Section 2 hereof. The termination or any modification or amendment of the Plan shall not, without the consent of an employee, affect
his rights under an option theretofore granted to him.
 
13. Applicability of Plan to Outstanding Stock Options
The Plan shall not affect the terms and conditions of any non-qualified stock options heretofore granted to any employee of the
Company or a Subsidiary Corporation under any other plan relating to non-qualified stock options; nor shall it affect any of the rights
of any employee to whom such a non-qualified stock option was granted.
 
14. Effective Date of Plan
This Plan shall become effective on the earlier to occur of the date of its adoption by the Board or its approval by the vote of the
shareholders holding a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock. If the Plan becomes effective by virtue of its
adoption by the Board, the Plan shall cease to be effective unless such shareholder approval shall have been obtained within twelve
(12) months after the adoption of the Plan by the Board.
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ANNUAL BONUS PERFORMANCE PLAN FOR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
 

SECTION 1
PURPOSE OF PLAN

The purpose of the Plan is to promote the success of the Company by providing to participating executives bonus incentives that
qualify as performance-based compensation within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code.1

SECTION 2
DEFINITIONS AND TERMS

2 . 1           Accounting Terms.  Except as otherwise expressly provided or the context otherwise requires, financial and
accounting terms are used as defined for purposes of, and shall be determined in accordance with, generally accepted accounting
principles, as from time to time in effect, as applied and reflected in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, prepared
in the ordinary course of business.

2 . 2           Specific Terms.  The following words and phrases as used herein shall have the following meanings unless a
different meaning is plainly required by the context:

“Bonus” means a cash payment or a payment opportunity as the context requires.

“Bonus Pool” means the total aggregate of cash payments or payment opportunities in any Year that may be allowed under
the Plan.

“Business Criteria” means any one or any combination of Income before Taxes, Net Income, Return on Equity, Return on
Assets, Pre-tax Margin, Free Cash Flow, Valuation or EPS.
 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.
 

“Committee” means the Performance Plan Subcommittee which has been established to administer the Plan in accordance
with Section 3.1 and Section 162(m) of the Code.

“Company” means American CryoStem Corporation and any successor, whether by merger, ownership of all or substantially
all of its assets, or otherwise.

“EBITDA” for any Year means the consolidated earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, and amortization as reported in
the financial statements of the Company for the Year.

“EPS” for any Year means earnings per share of the Company, as reported in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of
Income set forth in the financial statements of the Company for the Year.

“Executive” means a key employee (including any officer) of the Company who is (or in the opinion of the Committee may
during the applicable Performance Period become) an “executive officer” as defined in Rule 3b-7 under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended.

“Free Cash Flow” for any Year means the Consolidated Net Income plus the sum of the decrease in working capital and
depreciation and amortization less the sum of capital expenditures, mandatory debt payments and the increase in working capital as
reported in the financial statements of the Company for the Year.
 

1 The bonus incentives cannot qualify as “performance based compensation within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code” until
CRYO has a Committee consisting of “outside directors.”
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“Income before Taxes” for any Year means the consolidated income before taxes of the Company, as reported in the

financial statements of the Company for the Year.

“Net Income” for any Year means the consolidated net income of the Company, as reported in the financial statements of the
Company for the Year.

“Participant” means an Executive selected to participate in the Plan by the Committee.

“Performance Period” means the Year or Years with respect to which the Performance Targets are set by the Committee.

“Performance Target(s)” means the specific objective goal or goals (which may be cumulative and/or alternative) that are
timely set in writing by the Committee for each Executive for the Performance Period in respect of any one or more of the Business
Criteria.

“Plan” means this Annual Bonus Performance Plan for Executive Officers of the Company, as amended from time to time.

“Pre-tax Margin” for any Year means the Income before Taxes of the Company divided by Consolidated Sales of the
Company, as reported in the financial statements of the Company for the Year.
 

“Return on Assets” means Net Income divided by the average of the total assets of the Company at the end of the four fiscal
quarters of the Year, as reported by the Company in its consolidated financial statements.

“Return on Equity” means the Net Income divided by the average of the common stockholders equity of the Company at the
end of each of the four fiscal quarters of the Year, as reported by the Company in its consolidated financial statements.

“Section 162(m)” means Section 162(m) of the Code, and the regulations promulgated thereunder, all as amended from time
to time.

“Shares” means shares of common stock of the Company or any securities or property, including rights into which the same
may be converted by operation of law or otherwise.

“Valuation” for any Year means the product of consolidated EBITDA, as reported in the financial statements of the Company
for the Year, and six.

“Working Capital” for any Year means the consolidated current assets of the Company less the consolidated current
liabilities of the Company, as reported in the financial statements of the Company for the Year.

“Year” means any one or more fiscal years of the Company commencing on or after January 1, 2011 that represent(s) the
applicable Performance Period and end(s) no later than December 31, 2014.2

SECTION 3
ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN

3.1           The Committee.  The Plan shall be administered by a Committee consisting of at least one member of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”), duly authorized by the Board to administer the Plan, who are “outside directors” within the
meaning of Section 162(m). Should the Company have no “outside directors” then the Board shall serve as the Committee until such
time as outside directors are added to the Board.
 

2 Assumes CRYO will be switching to a calendar year end within the near future.
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3 . 2           Powers of the Committee.  The Committee shall have the sole authority to establish and administer the

Performance Target(s) and the responsibility of determining from among the Executives those persons who will participate in and
receive Bonuses under the Plan and, subject to Section 4 and Section 5 of the Plan, the amount of such Bonuses, and the time or
times at which and the form and manner in which Bonuses will be paid (which may include elective or mandatory deferral
alternatives) and shall otherwise be responsible for the administration of the Plan, in accordance with its terms.  The Committee shall
have the authority to construe and interpret the Plan (except as otherwise provided herein) and any agreement or other document
relating to any Bonus under the Plan, may adopt rules and regulations governing the administration of the Plan, and shall exercise all
other duties and powers conferred on it by the Plan, or which are incidental or ancillary thereto. For each Performance Period, the
Committee shall determine, at the time the Business Criteria and the Performance Target(s) are set, those Executives who are
selected as Participants in the Plan.

3 .3           Requisite Action.  A majority of the members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum. The vote of a majority of
those present at a meeting at which a quorum is present or the unanimous written consent of the Committee shall constitute action by
the Committee.

3 . 4           Express Authority (and Limitations on Authority) to Change Terms and Conditions of Bonus; Acceleration or
Deferral of Payment.  Without limiting the Committee’s authority under other provisions of the Plan, but subject to any express
limitations of the Plan and Section 5.8, the Committee shall have the authority to accelerate a Bonus (after the attainment of the
applicable Performance Target(s)) and to waive restrictive conditions for a Bonus (including any forfeiture conditions, but not
Performance Target(s)), in such circumstances as the Committee deems appropriate.  In the case of any acceleration of a Bonus
after the attainment of the applicable Performance Target(s), the amount payable shall be discounted to its present value using an
interest rate equal to Moody’s Average Corporate Bond Yield for the month preceding the month in which such acceleration
occurs.  Any deferred payment shall be subject to Section 4.9 and, if applicable, Section 4.10.

SECTION 4
BONUS PROVISIONS

4.1            Maximum Total Bonus.  In any Year the aggregate amount of bonuses awarded by the Company to all Participants
may not exceed the Bonus Pool. In any year the Bonus Pool is the product of 10% of Income before Taxes.

4.2            Provision for Bonus.  Each Participant may receive a Bonus if and only if the Performance Target(s) established by
the Committee, relative to the applicable Business Criteria, are attained.  The applicable Performance Period and Performance
Target(s) shall be determined by the Committee consistent with the terms of the Plan and Section 162(m).  Notwithstanding the fact
that the Performance Target(s) have been attained, the Company may pay a Bonus of less than the amount determined by the
formula or standard established pursuant to Section 4.2 or may pay no Bonus at all, unless the Committee otherwise expressly
provides by written contract or other written commitment.

4.3           Selection of Performance Target(s).  The specific Performance  Target(s) with respect to the Business Criteria must
be established by the Committee in advance of the deadlines applicable under Section 162(m) and while the performance relating to
the Performance Target(s) remains substantially uncertain within the meaning of Section 162(m).  At the time the Performance
Target(s) are selected, the Committee shall provide, in terms of an objective formula or standard for each Participant, and for any
person who may become a Participant after the Performance Target(s) are set, the method of computing the specific amount that will
represent the maximum amount of Bonus payable to the Participant if the Performance Target(s) are attained, subject to Sections 4.1,
4.2, 4.3, 4.8, 5.1 and 5.8.

4.4           Maximum Individual Bonus.  Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, no Executive shall receive a Bonus under
the Plan for the Year in excess of $1 million.  No Executive shall receive aggregate bonuses under this Plan for the Year in excess of
$1 million.
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4 . 5           Selection of Participants.  For each Performance Period, the Committee shall determine, at the time the Business

Criteria and the Performance Target(s) are set, those Executives who will participate in the Plan.

4 . 6           Effect of Mid-Year Commencement of Service.  To the extent compatible with Section 4.3 and Section 5.8, if
services as an Executive commence after the adoption of the Plan and the Performance Target(s) are established for a Performance
Period, the Committee may grant a Bonus that is proportionately adjusted based on the period of actual service during the Year; the
amount of any Bonus paid to such person shall not exceed that proportionate amount of the applicable maximum individual bonus
under Section 4.1 and Section 4.4.

4 . 7           Changes Resulting From Accounting Changes.  Subject to Section 5.8, if, after the Performance Target(s) are
established for a Performance Period, a change occurs in the applicable accounting principles or practices, the amount of the
Bonuses paid under this Plan for such Performance Period shall be determined without regard to such change.

4 .8           Committee Discretion to Determine Bonuses.  The Committee has the sole discretion to determine the standard or
formula pursuant to which each Participant’s Bonus shall be calculated (in accordance with Section 4.3), whether all or any portion of
the amount so calculated will be paid, and the specific amount (if any) to be paid to each Participant, subject in all cases to the terms,
conditions and limits of the Plan and of any other written commitment authorized by the Committee.  To this same extent, the
Committee may at any time establish additional conditions and terms of payment of Bonuses (including but not limited to the
achievement of other financial, strategic or individual goals, which may be objective or subjective) as it may deem desirable in
carrying out the purposes of the Plan and may take into account such other factors as it deems appropriate in administering any
aspect of the Plan. The Committee may not, however, increase the maximum amount permitted to be paid to any individual under
Section 4.3 or Section 4.4 of the Plan or award a Bonus under this Plan if the applicable Performance Target(s) have not been
satisfied.

4 . 9           Committee Certification.  No Executive shall receive any payment under the Plan unless the Committee has
certified, by resolution or other appropriate action in writing, that the amount thereof has been accurately determined in accordance
with the terms, conditions and limits of the Plan and that the Performance Target(s) and any other material terms previously
established by the Committee or set forth in the Plan were in fact satisfied.

4 . 1 0         Time of Payment; Deferred Amounts.  Any Bonuses granted by the Committee under the Plan shall be paid as
soon as practicable following the Committee’s determinations under this Section 4 and the certification of the Committee’s findings
under Section 4.9. Any such payment shall be in cash or cash equivalent or in such other form of equal value on such payment date
as the Committee may approve or require.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may, in its sole discretion (but subject to
any prior written commitments and to any conditions consistent with Sections 3.4, 4.1, 4.4 and 5.8 that it deems appropriate), defer
the payout or vesting of any Bonus and/or provide to Participants the opportunity to elect to defer the payment of any Bonus under a
nonqualified deferred compensation plan.  In the case of any deferred payment of a Bonus after the attainment of the applicable
Performance Target(s), any amount in excess of the amount otherwise payable shall be based on either Moody’s Average Corporate
Bond Yield over the deferral period or one or more predetermined actual investments (including Shares) such that the amount
payable at the later date will be based upon actual returns, including any decrease or increase in the value of the investment(s),
unless the alternative deferred payment is otherwise exempt from the limitations under Section 162(m).
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SECTION 5
GENERAL PROVISIONS

5 . 1           No Right to Bonus or Continued Employment.  Neither the establishment of the Plan nor the provision for or
payment of any amounts hereunder nor any action of the Company (including, for purposes of this Section 5.1, any predecessor or
subsidiary), the Board or the Committee in respect of the Plan, shall be held or construed to confer upon any person any legal right to
receive, or any interest in, a Bonus or any other benefit under the Plan, or any legal right to be continued in the employ of the
Company.  The Company expressly reserves any and all rights to discharge an Executive in its sole discretion, without liability of any
person, entity or governing body under the Plan or otherwise.  Notwithstanding any other provision hereof and notwithstanding the
fact that the Performance Target(s) have been attained and/or the individual maximum amounts pursuant to Section 4.2 have been
calculated, the Company shall have no obligation to pay any Bonus hereunder nor to pay the maximum amount so calculated or any
prorated amount based on service during the period, unless the Committee otherwise expressly provides by written contract or other
written commitment.

5 . 2           Discretion of Company, Board and Committee.  Any decision made or action taken by the Company, the Board or
the Committee arising out of or in connection with the creation, amendment, construction, administration, interpretation and effect of
the Plan shall be within the absolute discretion of such entity and shall be conclusive and binding upon all persons. No member of the
Committee shall have any liability for actions taken or omitted under the Plan by the member or any other person.

5.3           Absence of Liability.  No member of the Board, the Committee or any officer of the Company shall be liable for any
act or inaction hereunder, whether of commission or omission.

5 . 4           No Funding of Plan.  The Company shall not be required to fund or otherwise segregate any cash or any other
assets which may at any time be paid to Participants under the Plan.  The Plan shall constitute an “unfunded” plan of the
Company.  The Company shall not, by any provisions of the Plan, be deemed to be a trustee of any property, and any obligations of
the Company to any Participant under the Plan shall be those of a debtor and any rights of any participant or former Participant shall
be no greater than those of a general unsecured creditor.

5 . 5           Non-Transferability of Benefits and Interests.  Except as expressly provided by the Committee, no benefit payable
under the Plan shall be subject in any manner to anticipation, alienation, sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, encumbrance or charge,
and any such attempted action be void and no such benefit shall be in any manner liable for or subject to debts, contracts, liabilities,
engagements or torts of any Participant or former Participant. This Section 5.5 shall not apply to an assignment of a contingency or
payment due after the death of the Executive to the deceased Executive’s legal representative or beneficiary.

5 . 6           Law to Govern.  All questions pertaining to the construction, regulation, validity and effect of the provisions of the
Plan shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada, without regard to principles of conflicts of law.

5 . 7           Non-Exclusivity.  Subject to Section 5.8, the Plan does not limit the authority of the Company, the Board or the
Committee, or any subsidiary of the Company to grant awards or authorize any other compensation under any other plan or
authority, including, without limitation, awards or other compensation based on the same Performance Target(s) used under the
Plan.  In addition, Executives not selected to participate in the Plan may participate in other plans of the Company.

5 . 8           Section 162(m) Conditions; Bifurcation of Plan.  It is the intent of the Company that the Plan and Bonuses paid
hereunder satisfy and be interpreted in a manner, that, in the case of Participants who are or may be persons whose compensation is
subject to Section 162(m), satisfies any applicable requirements as performance-based compensation. Any provision, application or
interpretation of the Plan inconsistent with this intent to satisfy the standards in Section 162(m) of the Code shall be disregarded.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Plan, the provisions of the Plan may at any time be bifurcated by the Board or the
Committee in any manner so that certain provisions of the Plan or any Bonus intended (or required in order) to satisfy the applicable
requirements of Section 162(m) are only applicable to persons whose compensation is subject to Section 162(m).
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SECTION 6
AMENDMENTS, SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF PLAN

The Board or the Committee may from time to time amend, suspend or terminate in whole or in part, and if suspended or terminated,
may reinstate, any or all of the provisions of the Plan.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no amendment may be effective without Board
and/or shareholder approval if such approval is necessary to comply with the applicable rules of Section 162(m) of the Code.
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CERTIFICATION

The undersigned Secretary of the Company certifies that the foregoing constitutes a complete and correct copy of the Plan as
adopted on September 18, 2011 by the Board of Directors of American CryoStem Corporation.
 
 
  

Secretary  
 
Date: September 18, 2011
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Exhibit 31.1

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer

I, John Arnone, certify that:

1.           I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of American CryoStem Corporation;

2.           Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3.           Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

4.           The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)           Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)           Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)           Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d)           Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.           The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(a)           All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

(b)           Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: January 12, 2012 /s/ John Arnone  
 John Arnone,

Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer

I, Anthony Dudzinski, certify that:

1.           I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of American CryoStem Corporation;

2.           Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3.           Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

4.           The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)           Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)           Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)           Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d)           Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.           The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(a)           All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

(b)           Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: January 12, 2012 /s/ Anthony Dudzinski  
 Anthony Dudzinski,

Principal Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. Sec.1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of American CryoStem Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended
September 30, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), each of the
undersigned, John Arnone, Chief Executive Officer of the registrant and Anthony Dudzinski, Treasurer of the registrant, certifies,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to the best of my
knowledge that:

1.           The Report on Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

2.           The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

This certificate is being made for the exclusive purpose of compliance by the Chief Executive Officer and the Treasurer of the
Company with the requirements of Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and may not be disclosed, distributed or used by
any person or for any reason other than as specifically required by law.
 
Date: January 12, 2012 By: /s/ John Arnone
  Name: John Arnone
  Title: Chief Executive Officer
 

Date: January 12, 2012 By: /s/ Anthony Dudzinski
  Name: Anthony Dudzinski
  Title: Treasurer
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